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(@) IDBI capital

NOTICE OF THE TWENTY THIRD (23%°) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Third (23 ) Annual General Meeting of the Members of IDBI
Capital Markets & Securities Limited ( formerly IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd) will be held on
Thursday, the 29" September, 2016 at 5.00 p.m. at IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Ltd., 3rd Floor,
Mafatlal Centre, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021, to transact the following business:

A. Ordinary Business
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the reports of the Directors’ and Auditor’s
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Bhama Krishnamurthy, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, seeks reappointment.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and, in that behalf, to consider and, if
thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 & other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to appoint Statutory
Auditors as per the directions of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the Financial
Year 2016-2017 and that the Auditors so appointed shall hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
and that the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby also authorized to decide on
the remuneration payable to the Auditors as per the recommendation of Audit Committee of
the Board and inform the same to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.”

B. Special Business

4. To appoint as Director of the Company Shri Kishor Kharat (DIN: 07266945) who was appointed
as an Additional Director and designated as Chairman of the Company with effect from
September 02, 2015 by the Board of Directors and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and who is
eligible for appointment.

In this connection, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Kishor Kharat (DIN: 07266945), who was appointed as an Additional
Director and Chairman of the Company by the Board of Directors and who holds office up to the
date of the Annual General Meeting under Section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is
hereby appointed as Director and Chairman of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all things

and deeds required to give effect to this resolution including but not limited to informing the
ROC/ MCA/ Competent Authority by filing applicable statutory Forms with regulators and
updating relevant records.”



5. To appoint as Director and MD & CEO of IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited, Shri Nagaraj
Garla (DIN: 06983880) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director
under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company and who was also designated as MD& CEO of the Company
with effect from October 23, 2015.

In this connection to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in terms of Articles 124, 129 and 130 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and in terms of sections 2(94), 196, 197, 198 and 203 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereon, if
applicable, Shri Nagaraj Garla (DIN:06983880), who was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company and designated as Managing Director & CEO of the Company by the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on October 23, 2015 pursuant to Articles 124 of the Articles of
Association of the Company and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and who holds office
as Additional Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 (1)
of the Companies Act, be and is hereby appointed as Director on the Board and as Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer (MD&CEQ) of the Company, with effect from October 23,
2015 for a period of 1 year up to October 22, 2016, subject to further extension by IDBI Bank
Ltd, on such terms and conditions including remuneration as contained in the Letter ref no HRD
No. 10250 Deputation —IDBI Caps, dated October 21, 2015 issued by IDBI Bank Ltd and as
disclosed in the Explanatory Statement to this Resolution, who shall not be liable to retire by
rotation."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Nagaraj Garla (DIN: 06983880) shall not be entitled to receive
any remuneration from the Company except for all pay, allowances, perquisites and
superannuation contribution as per rules stipulated by IDBI Bank and other applicable policies of
IDBI Bank/IDBI Capital subject to the ceilings prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and
applicable rules there under.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company are hereby authorized to
extend the period of appointment of Shri Nagaraj Garla (DIN: 06983880), if so desired by the
Board, at the expiry of the one year period from October 23, 2015.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to vary the terms of appointment including remuneration within the overall limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedules thereto on the basis of advice given
by IDBI Bank Limited from time to time and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may
be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this Resolution."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all things
and deeds required to give effect to this resolution including but not limited to inform the ROC/
MCA/ Competent Authority by filing applicable statutory Forms with regulators and updating
relevant records.”



Explanatory Statement to Item No 4: Appointment of Shri Kishor Kharat As Director

Shri M.S. Raghavan vacated the office as Chairman of the Company from June 30, 2015. In terms of
IDBI Bank Ltd.’s letter dated August 24, 2015, IDBI Bank has approved the induction of Shri Kishor
Kharat on the Board of the Company as a Director and Chairman on the Board of the Company.

Accordingly Shri Kishor Kharat was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company and
Chairman with effect from September 02, 2015 by the Board of Directors under Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Article 124 of the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
approval of BSE/NSE/SEBI and such other authorities, as applicable. In terms of Section 261 (1) of the
Act, Shri Kishor Kharat, holds office only up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company, but is eligible for re-appointment as a Director.

Shri Kishor Kharat has assumed charge as Managing Director & CEO of IDBI Bank on August 14, 2015.
Prior to the present assignment, Shri Kharat was posted as Executive Director, Union Bank of India.
Preceding to Union Bank of India, Shri Kharat had an immensely successful career experience of over
37 years at Bank of Baroda. Shri Kharat has got varied exposure across various aspects of banking,
including credit, international business, information technology and general administration in India
as well as overseas.

Shri Kharat to his credit has the honour of establishing a foreign subsidiary of Bank of Baroda in
Trinidad & Tobago [West Indies] and headed the same as Managing Director for more than three
years. His other foreign assignment was at Sharjah [UAE].

Shri Kharat has been a key driver for implementation of major financial inclusion initiatives and has
worked closely with RBI as well as Government of India in this regard. Shri Kharat is a Member of the
RBI Committee on Financial Inclusion, which has been given the responsibility of drawing a medium
term roadmap for furthering financial inclusion in India.

The other organisatiosn where he is Chairman / Director are::

Organization Name | Position Held Nature of job/ Period ( From - to--)
responsibilities

IDBI Bank Ltd. MD& CEO, Board level | Continuing
responsibility

Export Import Bank | Director and Member | Board level | Continuing

of India of Audit Committee, responsibility

IDBI Trusteeship | Chairman Board level | Continuing

Services Ltd responsibility

Enterprenurehsip President of | Board level | Continuing

Development Government Council | responsibility

Institute of India-

IDBI Asset | Chairman Board level | Continuing

Management responsibility

Limited-

IDBI Intech Limited | Chairman Board level | Continuing
responsibility

Stressed Asset | Chairman and | Board level | Continuing

Stabilization Fund Executive Trustee. responsibility




Shri Kishor Kharat ( DIN: 07266945) does not receive any remuneration, benefits, or commission
from the Company.

Shri Kishor Kharat ( DIN: 07266945) does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial
basis, any shares in the Company.

Shri Kishor Kharat after his appointment as Director attended the following meetings:

Number of Meetings held after appointment Number of Meetings Attended

6 6

The Board considers it desirable that the Company should receive the benefits of his valuable
experience and advice and recommends his appointment.

Except Shri Kishor Kharat, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 4.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT 2013

Explanatory Statement to Item No 5: Appointment of Shri Nagaraj Garla

IDBI Bank Limited, in terms of Articles 124, 129 and 130 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, vide letter dated October 21, 2015 had advised appointment of Shri Nagaraj Garla
(DIN:06983880), CGM, IDBI Bank Ltd, as MD & CEO on the Board of IDBI Capital Market Services
Limited.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors at then meeting held on October 23, 2015 had appointed
Shri Nagaraj Garla as an Additional Director of the Company and as the "Managing Director & CEQ"
of the Company for an initial period of one year but not more than 3 years subject to annual review.

Shri Garla has over 2 decades of experience in banking & finance spanning across different verticals
viz. Corporate Banking, Retail Banking, MSME, Agri and Rural Credit, Trade Finance and International
Banking Operations. Shri Garla’s competencies include building strategies, framing business plans
and successfully implementing result oriented strategies for achieving targeted growth. Shri Garla
has been instrumental in escalating the Corporate Banking business at all locations. Shri Garla has
spearheaded the Retail Banking Business in his zones and was responsible for substantially
surpassing the budgeted targets including Direct Agri & Priority Sector targets.

Shri Garla’s successful assignments include his posting as Branch Head, Madurai and Branch Head
Bangalore; also Regional Head, Mid-Corporate Group, Chennai, PSG, Nagpur and CBG, Mumbai. His
last assighnment was as Zonal Head, Chennai South |. During his assignments, Shri Garla was
instrumental in building and maintaining healthy business relationships with high net-worth,
corporate and Government clients.

Shri Garla has also represented IDBI Bank at the CDR Forum. As a representative of IDBI Bank he was
a Member of the IL&FS Credit Committee. Shri Garla was also on the Board of Directors of India
Cements Limited and Orchid Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Limited. Shri Garla has also been a



Member of the Zonal Credit Committees for more than 7 years. He has been appointed as MD & CEO
of IDBI Capital Market Services Limited since October 23, 2015.

Shri Nagaraj Garla, does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares
in the Company nor he is related to any Director, Manager or Key Managerial Personnel of IDBI

Capital in any manner.

Shri Nagaraj Garla being eligible and offering himself for appointment is proposed to be appointed as
a MD & CEO of the Company.

Shri Nagaraj Garla does not hold any Directorship in other Companies. Shri Nagaraj Garla has been
appointed as Member of the Trading Member Advisory Committee of NSE w.e.f. June 09, 2016.

Shri Nagaraj Garla after his appointment attended the following meetings of the Board:

Number of Meetings held after appointment Number of Meetings Attended
4 4

His memberships in the Committees of the Board are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Member
Committee

Memorandum and Articles of Association and the letter dated October 21, 2015 from IDBI Bank Ltd
recommending appointment of Shri Nagaraj Garla are available for inspection by the Members
during the business hours i.e 11 a.m. to 1 p.m. at the registered office of the Company from Monday
to Friday.

Except Shri Nagaraj Garla, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at Item No. 5.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai Christina D’souza
Date: September 27, 2016 Company Secretary

IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited
CIN: U65990MH1993G0I1075578



NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND TO VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL ON HIS BEHALF AND THAT THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. PROXY FORMS IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED &
AFFIXED WITH REVENUE STAMP AND MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48
HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

The relevant explanatory statements pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act; 2013 in
respect of business under item no. 4 and 5 is attached herewith.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution.

The quorum for the Annual General Meeting, as provided in Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013, is five members (including a duly authorized representative of the IDBI Bank) personally
present in the meeting at the commencement of business.

Register of members shall be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during office hours on all working days between 11 a.m. and 1p.m.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To The Members

Your Company’s Board of Directors hereby presents its Report on the business and operations of the

Company for the year ended March 31, 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS & REPORTS

The financials for the year ended March 31, 2016 with comparative figures for the previous year are

given below:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2015
Rs. In lakhs
Profit/ (Loss) before depreciation, tax and write-off of 1614 2409
preliminary expenses
Depreciation 189 168
Preliminary Expenses written off Nil Nil
Profit before tax 1425 2241
Less: Provision for tax 497 1091
Profit/(Loss) after tax 928 1150
Add: Balance in Profit and Loss Account brought forward 360 336
Amount available for appropriation 1288 1486
Appropriations:
Transfer to General Reserve 0 200
Interim Dividend 1025 0
Tax on Interim Dividend 208 0
Proposed Dividend 0 769
Tax on Proposed Dividend 0 157
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 55 360

CHANGE OF NAME:

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval obtained at the Extraordinary General Meeting, the name of
the Company was changed from ‘IDBI Capital Market Services Limited’ to ‘IDBI Capital Markets &

Securities Limited’ with effect from June 06, 2016.



COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS:

Your Company is engaged in the business of merchant banking, stock broking, distribution of
financial products, corporate advisory services, debt arranging & undertaking, portfolio management
of pension / PF funds & research services. It offers a wide range of capital market services to

institutional, corporate and retail clients.

DIVIDENDS

Your Directors after taking into consideration the profits of the Company had declared and paid an
interim dividend of 8% during the financial year 2015-2016 (6% final dividend was paid for the
previous year 2014-2015). The appropriation for dividend, including dividend distribution tax,
amounted to Rs. 1233 lakhs. The dividend amount paid is Rs. 1025 lakhs and dividend tax is Rs. 208
lakhs.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED DURING THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF
BOARD REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2016 and

the date of the Directors’ Report.

PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

The Company has one Associate Company (33.33% owned), namely, IDBI Asset Management Ltd. A
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement and all other requisite details of the

said Associate Company in the format AOC-I is appended as Annexure B.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company for the Financial Year 2015-16 are prepared
in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued

thereunder and applicable Accounting Standards.

A copy of the Audited Financial Statements of the Associate Company shall be made available for

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

The Indian economy saw a pick-up in GDP growth in FY16 to 7.6% from 7.2% in FY15. This was driven
by a strong 7.9% growth in Q4FY16 making India the fastest growing major economy out placing

China. Also, FY16 growth is the highest growth achieved since the new GDP series was launched in



2011-12. Nominal GDP grew at 10.4% in Q4FY16 higher than 9.1% in Q3FY16 as inflation in Q4FY16

increased to 2.5% against less than 2% in Q3FY16.

Agriculture grew by 1.2% in FY16, despite the impact of drought in many parts of the country. This
growth was aided by a 2.3% growth in Q4FY16 which offset the impact of a 1% decline in Q3FY16. In
Q4FY16, both Manufacturing and Financial sector saw a decline in growth rate. Manufacturing grew
by 9.3% vs. 11.5% in Q3FY16, while Financial sector grew by 9.1% vs. 10.5% in Q3FY16. For the full

year, Manufacturing grew at 9.3% and Financial sector grew at 10.3%.

IMF, in its last World Economic outlook, cut its 2016 global growth forecast for the fourth time in the
past year to 3.2%, some loss of growth momentum in the advanced economies, and continuing
headwinds for emerging market economies and lower-income countries. However, it has maintained
its FY16 and FY17 GDP growth forecast of 7.5% for India. It continues to believe that the pick-up on
India’s GDP will continue to be driven by private consumption, benefiting from lower energy prices
and higher real incomes. It believes that lower commodity prices, a range of supply side measures,

and a relatively tight monetary stance have resulted in a faster-than-expected fall in inflation.

The Indian Government has met its fiscal deficit target 3.9% of GDP for FY16. This was slightly lower
than 4% in FY15. For FY17, the Indian Government has fiscal deficit target of 3.5%.

INDIAN EQUITY MARKETS DURING FY 2015-16

Indian equity markets saw weakness in FY16 impacted by combination of 1) weakness in the global
markets and 2) muted earnings growth in the domestic market. S&P BSE SENSEX declined by ~9%
YoY, however, it still outperformed the Chinese benchmark index - Shanghai Shenzhen CSI 300 Index

— which saw a decline of ~19% during the same period.

Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls) saw a net outflow of “INR177bn during FY16. While Dlls more
than offset for the flows with net purchase of “~INR557bn, it would not prevent Indian markets from

delivering a negative return for FY16.

Amongst leading indices only the Consumer Durables index was positive with a gain of ~10%. The IT
index was flat benefiting from INR depreciation against the USS. Even the Oi& Gas index out-
performed as the government utilized falling crude prices to rationalize it subsidies. The FMCG index
also saw a lower decline as it is a defensive sector. Amongst other sectors, only Auto saw a decline in
single digit. Whereas sectors like Bankex (impacted by deteriorating asset quality), Healthcare and
Power indexes saw a decline between 10%-20%. Further, Capital Goods, Metal and Realty indexes

performed the worst and saw a decline on 20%+.



Some of the performance indicators of Major BSE Indices are given in tabular form below:-

Change over
last year Change over year's low
31-Mar- | 31-Mar-
15 16 Year’s

Major BSE Indices Low YoY % YoY %

Sensex 27,957 25,342 22,277 | 2,616 -9.4 3,065 13.8
Auto 19,259 18,002 13,197 | 1,257 -6.5 4,804 36.4
Bankex 20,865 18,392 14,305 | 2,473 -11.9 4,087 28.6
Capital Goods 17,293 12,861 11,886 | 4,432 -25.6 975 8.2
Consumer Durables 10,418 11,481 6,517 | 1,063 10.2 4,963 76.2
Metal 9,466 7,541 9,318 | 1,925 -20.3 -1,778 -19.1
FMCG 7,775 7,692 6,564 -82 -1.1 1,128 17.2
Health Care 17,233 15,149 9,945 | 2,084 -12.1 5,204 52.3
IT 11,392 11,388 8,214 -4 0.0 3,174 38.6
Oil & Gas 9,312 9,162 9,123 [ -150 -1.6 39 0.4
Power 2,127 1,776 1,668 -352 -16.5 108 6.5
Realty 1,665 1,228 1,361 -436 -26.2 -133 -9.7

Source: BSE, IDBI Capital Market Services Limited

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The performance of your Company has been detailed in the paragraphs below:

INVESTMENT BANKING

The investment Banking group consists of three sub verticals viz. Capital Market, Corporate Advisory
and M&A. The primary markets saw a revival in fund raising on the back of rising Corporate and
Investor confidence in economic revival. The Capital Market group completed an IPO for an
Infrastructure company; two right issues, an OFs and several advisory mandates form prestigious
clients such as LIC, Mangalore Refinery, Vindya Telelinks. With team being in place, the business
development efforts were strengthened and mandates for Fund raising from three leading public

sector Banks and an Airport Developer were bagged.

Despite the lag in pickup of economic activities, the advisory group was able to generate good
amount of revenue for the year. To strengthen the efforts further in this area, two new offices at
Bangalore & Coimbatore have been opened. M&A vertical has got mandates for bringing in

Investors for large Power Projects, Road Projects, Oil & gas fields.



We have also been appointed as Advisor to National Investment & Infrastructure Fund Trustee Ltd,
which is the Trustee to NIIF a 40,000 crore alternative investment fund set up by the Government of

India.

Going forward, Capital Market group plans to generate a judicious mix of assignments, which
includes IPOs, QIPs, Offer for sale and Buyback. Advisory group plans to explore existing relationship
with its clients, banks and other Intermediaries for the Syndication and Advisory deals to boost its
revenue. A senior resource has been taken on board, to strengthen the Private Equity segment, in
view of the opportunities available in the market. More active coordination has been developed with

the Parent Bank to improve overall synergies.

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT & ADVISORY SERVICES

Your Company manages funds for four corporate clients. While funds deployed through the
F.Y.2015-16 stood at Rs.3,844.90 Cr. , the AUM under management at the end of the F.Y.2015-16
stands at Rs.7,547.29 Cr.

The return on the investments during the F.Y.2015-16 was 8.67% for retirement funds and 7.83% for

the surplus funds. The average ten year GSEC yield stood at 7.75%.

INSTITUTIONAL BROKING:

The Institutional Broking Group made a marginal profit during the year. The brokerage income of
Institutional Broking during the FY 2015-16 was Rs. 307 Lakhs vis-a-vis of Rs. 404 Lakhs during FY
2014-15. Total turnover during the year stood at Rs.44 bn compared to Rs. 60 bn during the FY 2014-
15. The reduction in turnover during the year was due to negative sentiments in the market and
worldwide recession. The Group continued its efforts on increasing existing client’s engagement /

business and was able to acquire 6 new clients during the financial year.

These initiatives will continue in FY 2016-17 to further enhance the business. Also there was
turnover in the Research and Sales team. A new team has been built which is expected to generate

increased revenue in FY 2016-17.

RETAIL BROKING:

The Retail Broking Group has reported gross revenue of Rs.21.86 Cr during FY2015-16 vis-a-vis

Rs.21.97 Cr in the previous financial year 2014-15 with marginal drop in the revenue.



The new TCS platform launched in 2015 is well stabilized. The Mobile App is becoming popular
among clients and is widely being used. There has been increase in revenue generation trend
through mobile app. The mobile app channel with the introduction of feature of push message will
substantially increase revenue generation channel in coming years. The name of the trading portal

was changed from IDBI paisabuilder to IDBI Direct in order to increase visibility.

Retail group shall be launching Retail PMS and Currency Derivative in FY17 which will add value and
will give boost in increasing the Retail Revenue.

Retail group is in the process of providing facility of end to end online Trading and Demat account
opening which will help the client to open Trading account with IDBI Capital from any geographical
location and without any sales personal visiting the client. This will curtail the existing TAT and will

enhance acquisition of accounts manifold.

The group will also make efforts in popularizing brand image through online advertisement and

would also explore opportunities through social events\gatherings.

FUTURE PLANS

With its strong brand and rich legacy, we believe that your Company has the potential to transform
itself from the debt recast and NPA resolution Company to a strong, efficient, Investment banking
and retail broking Company. In the present financial year your Company endeavors to focus on its

key business areas by concentration on the following 10 dots for success:

e Successful transformation from CDR to SDR & S4A and association with corporates and banks
at all three cycles i.e. conversion of debt into equity, management of the company and
finding the right investor.

e The Company has recently bagged a prestigious mandate as Advisor to National Investment &
Infrastructure Fund Trustee Ltd, which is the Trustee to NIIF a 40,000 crore alternative
investment fund set up by the Government of India. Taking a cue from our experience, we
plan to focus on Government business by pro-active engagement with the Central and State
Governments.

e Leveraging corporate relationships of our parent to scale up revenues from Capital Market
and M&A space.

e Pro-active engagement with Institutions to become preferred institutional broker.

e Tapping of possible opportunities in the private equity space by strengthening our PE talent

pool.



e Focusing on System stability, sustainability and value creation.

e Focusing on HNI business and introduction of retail PMS and Currency Derivatives to scale up
retail revenue stream.

e Re-designing the entire retail broking business model to cut costs and increase revenue by
differentiated customer delivery models.

e Enhanced engagement with the parent to take out all business possibilities.

e Retention and growth of talent within the Company and focus on employee friendly and
leadership culture. We are also assessing creation of ESOP’s to attract the best talent in the

industry and in this direction we are revamping our HR policy to attract the best talent.

With a view to establish an International presence, the Company is in the process of applying for a
license for setting up of a branch at the Dubai International Financial Centre. We endeavour to have

a global presence in the next three years across Singapore / Hongkong / UK & Middle East.

Our vision is to eventually list the shares of the Company / seek a strategic investor to add value to

the stakeholder.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The CSR Policy of the Company covers areas across healthcare, education, rural development,

livelihood generation and socio economic empowerment.

Through its CSR initiatives during the FY 2015-16, your Company touched upon various areas like

health, environment sustainability, eradication of malnutrition and disaster relief.

Your Company sponsored the setting up of a 30 K.W PV Solar Plant at Prakrit Bharati Academy,
Jaipur, a library providing access to students across Jaipur, thus aiding in environmental sustainability

and trying to make the world a green place.

On the health front your Company sponsored 2 Cancer Detection Camps at Kalyan for deserving and
poor women from Thane and neighboring areas below poverty line like Kalyan, Bhivandi, Murbad,

Sahapur, Karjat.

In December 2015, a massive flood caused mass destruction to lives & property in Chennai, your
Company contributed to the “Chief Ministers Public Relief Fund (Tamil Nadu)” in the rehabilitation at

Chennai.



Your Company also assisted in the nutrition program/ mid-day meal project of “Annamrita” ISKCON
Food Relief Foundation” to eradicate hunger and malnutrition by sponsoring 2 vehicles to be used to

transport meals to Government aided schools across Mumbai.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has instituted and implemented a Code of Conduct
for Trading in Securities by Employees and Directors. The Company periodically monitors trading by

its employees and ensures strict compliance with the Regulations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy which provides an integrated framework for
managing risks. The Policy has a holistic approach and encompasses all stages of risk management

viz. Identification, Measurement, Management and Control.

The Risk Management Committee of the Company supervises and monitors the Risk Management

function of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuUTGO

As your Company is not a manufacturing company, there are no particulars to disclose pertaining to

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption.

Further, the details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are provided at Note No. 32 in the Notes

to the Accounts. Your Company uses information technology extensively in its day-to-day operations

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY;

During the period of review, the Company continued to carry on the business of Merchant Banking

and Stock broking and there was no change in the nature of its business

DIRECTORS

Your Company’s Board of Directors is broad-based and its constitution is governed by the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of your Company. The Board functions



directly as well as through various Board-level Committees constituted to provide focused

governance in your Company’s important functional areas.

As on the date of the report, the Board comprises of Six Directors, including the Managing Director &

CEO, three Non-Executive Directors and two Independent Directors.

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of
the Company, one of your Directors, viz. Smt. Bhama Krishnamurthy retires by rotation at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING FY
2015-16

The following table describes the changes in the Board of Directors & Key managerial Personnel

during FY 2015-16.

Name of Directors Appointment/Resignation/Cessation Date

Shri Kishor Kharat Appointed as Chairman September 02, 2015
(DIN: 07266945)

Shri Nagaraj Garla Appointed as MD/CEO October 23, 2015.
(DIN: 06983880)

Shri M.S. Raghavan Resigned from Board as Chairman due | June 30, 2015
(DIN:05236790) to superannuation from IDBI Bank Ltd
Shri D C Jain Resigned from the Board pursuant to | August 31, 2015

superannuation from IDBI Bank Ltd.

During the year, Shri P.K. Sethi( Sr. EVP) was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
September 02, 2015 to hold office up to October 23, 2015.

Further term of Shri Sivaram Swamy as Independent Director expired on April 15, 2016 and was not

renewed further.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

DATES & ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING FY 2015-16

During the financial year 2015-16, 7 (seven) meetings of the Board of Directors were held.

Details of the attendance of Directors is given below :




Sr. Date & Time of | Number of Directors | Number of Directors to whom
No. | Meetings present Leave of absence was granted

1 April 22, 2015 7/7 0

2 August 11, 2015 6/6 0

3 September 02, 2015 5/6 1

4 September 10,2015 5/6 1

5 October 23,2015 4/6 2

6 November 30, 2015 7/7 0

7 March 16, 2016 7/7 0

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 149 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of The Companies

(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 your Company is required to have

minimum two Independent Directors.

As on March 31, 2016, your Company has following three Independent Directors:

Sr. No. | Name of the Independent Director DIN Date of appointment
1. Shri S.Ravi (DIN: 00009790) 22/08/2014
2. Shri P.P. Chhajed (DIN: 03544734) 22/08/2014
3. Shri Sivaram Swamy (DIN:00041775) 22/08/2014

The Independent Directors of the Company, met the criteria of ‘independence’ prescribed under

section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and had also submitted a declaration to that effect.

Further, the term of Shri Sivaram Swamy as Independent Director of the Company expired on April

15, 2016 and was not renewed further.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has 3 committees to oversee various functional aspects of your Company’s business and

operations:

Audit Committee

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee




Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) provides direction, monitors the functioning of the Internal
auditors, review financial statements and recommends appointment of auditors and their

remuneration. The names of the members of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2016 are as

under:
Sr. Name of Director Status
No.
1 Shri P. P. Chhajed (DIN: 03544734) Chairman
2 Shri S. Ravi (DIN: 00009790) Member
3 Shri B. K .Batra (DIN:00015732) Member
4 Shri Sivaram Swamy (DIN:00041775) Member
5 MD & CEO Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS

Dates & Attendance of Directors at Meetings of ACB held during FY 2014-15
During the Financial Year 2015-16, four meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board were held.

Details of attendance are given herein below:

Sr.No. Date of Meetings Number of | Number of Directors to
Directors present | whom Leave of absence was
granted
1 April 22, 2015 5/5 0
2 August 11, 2015 5/5 0
3 November 30, 2015 5/5 0
4 March 31, 2016 5/5 0

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board (CSR) was constituted as per the
provision of section 135 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March
31, 2016, the CSR Committee comprised of four members appointed by your Board. The names of

the members of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2016 are as under:

Sr. No. Name of Director Status

1 Shri P.P. Chhajed (DIN: 03544734) Chairman
2 Shri Sivaram Swamy (DIN:00041775) Member
3 Shri B.K. Batra (DIN:00015732) Member
4, MD & CEO of the Company Member




The Committee provides advices, directions and monitors the functioning of the CSR activities of the

Company as per the Companies Act, 2013.

CSR COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS

Dates & Attendance of Directors at Meetings of CSR Committee held during FY 2015-16
During the Financial Year 2015-16, one meeting of the CSR Committee of the Board were held.

Details of attendance are given hereinbelow : -

Sr.No. Date of Meetings Number of Directors | Number of Directors to
present whom Leave of absence
was granted
1 March 16, 2015 4/4 0

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&RC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted as per the provision of
section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2016 it
comprises of three members who are appointed by your Board. The names of the members of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

Sr. No. Name of Director Status

1 Shri S. Ravi (DIN: 00009790) Chairman
2 Shri P.P. Chhajed (DIN: 03544734) Member
3 Shri B.K. Batra (DIN:00015732) Member

The Committee identifies and recommends to the Company, persons who are qualified to become
Directors, senior management and other officials of the Company, it carries out evaluation of every
Director’s performance as required under the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee after its review

provides advice/recommendation to the Board.

N&RC Meetings and Attendance of Members

Dates & Attendance of Directors at Meetings of NRC held during FY 2014-15
During the Financial year 2015-16 five meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of

the Board were held . Details of attendance are given herein below :



Sr.No. | Date of Meetings Number of Directors | Number of Directors to
present whom Leave of absence
was granted

1 May 22, 2015 3/3 0
2 August 11, 2015 3/3 0
3 September 02,2015 3/3 0
4 October 23, 2015 2/3 1
5 March 16, 2016 3/3 0

COMPANY'’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has adopted Directors’ Appointment and Evaluation Policy in terms of Section 178(3) and

(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, describing the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive

attributes and Independence of a Director, Review and Evaluation of the performance of Directors

etc.

The Company also has a Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other

employees.

The key features of the Policies are given hereunder:

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND EVALUATION POLICY

Mode of Appointment of Directors

(1) Directors shall be appointed either by the Board or by Shareholders in a General
Meeting.

(2) The MD & CEO shall be nominated by IDBI Bank and may be on deputation from
IDBI Bank or as advised by IDBI Bank. Such appointment shall be subject to
approval by the Company’s Board of Directors.

(3)(a) The non rotational Independent Directors to be identified by the Board of
Directors shall be appointed by the shareholders at the General Meeting. While
identifying the persons to be appointed as Independent Directors, the Board will
ensure that such persons possess the qualifications prescribed under Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and are also not disqualified to be a Director under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(b) After Board's identification as above, the candidature of such person shall

be submitted to the next General Meeting for approval of the appointment

by following the procedure contained under Section 160 of the Companies




Act, 2013. All shareholders will be eligible to elect the Independent
Directors. The initial term of Independent Directors will be up to 5
consecutive years extendable to one more term of 5 consecutive years by

passing a Special Resolution at the General Meeting.

(c) After approval of Independent Directors' appointment, a formal
appointment letter with contents prescribed under Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013 will be issued to the Independent Directors so

appointed.

(d) In terms of Article 120 (b) (ii) one Woman Director may be appointed on the

Board in terms of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(e) In terms of Article 120 (b) (iii), the Company will ensure that at least one of
the Directors on the Board has stayed in India for total period of not less than

182 days during the previous calendar year.

() The intermittent vacancy of an Independent Director shall be filled up by the
Board at the earliest but not later than immediate next Board Meeting or 3
months from the date of such vacancy, whichever is later.

Qualification of Directors

1. The candidates to be appointed on the Board should possess relevant experience as
deemed fit by the Board in order to be able to guide the management of the Company.
2. Directors should not be disqualified in terms of section 164 of the Companies Act.

3. Directors should possess a valid Director Identification Number (DIN) in terms of the
extant regulations.

4. Directors should have leadership and management experience.

Independence of Directors

Independent Directors should possess the criteria for independence as stated in section
149(6) of the Companies, Act, 2013.

Independent Directors shall submit a declaration to the Company stating that the meet
the prescribed criteria for independence. Further in case at the time the Director fails
to meet the criteria of Independence, such Director shall immediately inform the
Company of such event.

Independent Directors shall abide by the Code for Independent Directors as stated in

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.




Appointment of Senior Management Personnel

“Senior Management” means Personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team (excluding Board of Directors), comprising all members of
management one level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.
Senior Management Personnel shall be appointed in accordance with the HR Policy of
the Company or may be appointed on deputation from IDBI Bank Limited.

The Senior Management Personnel shall possess qualifications and/or experience
relevant to their functions.

Performance Evaluation of Directors by the Board

(i) In terms of the provisions of Schedule IV (Para VIII) and Section 134(1)(p) of the
Companies Act, 2013, performance evaluation of the Independent Directors and
all other individual directors shall be done annually by the Board of Directors in
the last month of the Financial Year.

(ii)  On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it will be determined
whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of Independent

Directors.

(iii) The performance evaluation of individual directors by the Board shall be done

on the evaluation sheet as per the format given at Annexure | to the policy.

Performance Review of Non Independent Directorsand the Chairperson by

Independent Directors

(i) In terms of the provisions of Schedule IV (Para VII) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Independent Directors shall hold an Annual Meeting in a year without the
attendance of Non Independent Directors and members of the Management for
the following purpose:

a. review the performance of the non-independent directors and the Board
as a whole

b. review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into
account the views of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors.

c. assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for
the Board to effectively perform its functions.

ii) The performance review of Non Independent Directors by Independent Directors
shall be done on the review sheet as per the format given at Annexure Il and that

of Chairperson of the Board will be done on the format given at Annexure Ill.




DETAILS OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Directors’ Remuneration

The Managing Director and CEO of the Company is been appointed based on the
recommendations and nomination of the parent company i.e. IDBI Bank Ltd. The pay
scales and Remuneration structure would be as decided by IDBI Bank and as approved
by the Board/Shareholders from time to time. Provided however, that the same shall be
subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further in terms of Article 128 of the Articles of Association of the Company, if any
Director, is called upon to perform extra services or special exertion or efforts, the Board
may arrange with such Director for such special remuneration for such special services
or special exertions or efforts either by a fixed sum or otherwise as may be determined
by the Board and subject to the provisions of the Act.

Apart from the above, no other Remuneration would be payable to any other Director
on the Board of IDBI Capital except the payment of sitting fees to Directors @ Rs.
10,000/- per meeting of the Board and Audit Committee of the Board and @ Rs. 5000/-
per meeting for other Board Committee Meetings. These rates may be changed after
approval of the Board but shall be subject to the ceilings prescribed by the Act and or
Rules made thereunder from time to time. Apart from the sitting fees, the expenses on
Travel, Transportation and Stay of Directors attending the Board and Board Committee

Meetings would be borne or reimbursed by IDBI Capital.

[1l. Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel

In terms of section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013, Key Managerial Personnel, in
relation to a Company means:’

(i) The CEO or Managing Director;

(ii) The Whole Time Director;

(iii) The Company Secretary;

(iv) The Chief Financial Officer (CFO); and

(v) Such other officer as may be prescribed

The Remuneration Policy for the Managing Director and CEO of the Company as at (i)
above is covered under Para Il of this Policy. As regards CFO and the Company Secretary,
the positions are held by employees of the Company and their Pay Scales and
Remuneration structure would be determined in line with the HR Policy of the Company.

V. Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and Employees

The Pay Scales and Remuneration structure of Companies Employees would be

finalized by the Company, in accordance with the HR Policy of the Company and would




be market driven and based on the experience of the respective candidates.
Further Remuneration structure to Officers on deputation from IDBI Bank (other than
the Managing Director & CEO)would be as advised by IDBI Bank from time to time and

would be reimbursed to IDBI Bank upon receipt of intimation from IDBI Bank.

STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER OF FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

In terms of Section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(4) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details on the captioned matter are furnished herein below:

(i) Independent Directors, at their meeting held on March 16, 2016 evaluated the performance
of all Non-Independent Directors including the Chairman of the Board as well as the

performance of the Board as a whole.

(ii) The Board at its meeting held on March 16, 2016 evaluated the performance of all Directors

on the Board, its own performance as well as the performance of committees of the Board.

The Director concerned being evaluated by the Board, did not participate in the meeting during the

process of his/her own evaluation.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Your Company falls within the purview of the provisions of Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013. Statutory Auditors are therefore appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.
M/s SACHDEV & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, were appointed as Statutory Auditors for the
FY 2015-2016.

Further Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) on the Company’s
financials in terms of section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the Consolidated
Financial Statements in terms of and Section 143 (6) (b) read with Section 129 (4) are given
separately in this Report. The said Comments do not contain any adverse remark.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Alwyn Jay & Co,,

Company Secretaries have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of your Company. The



Secretarial Audit Report dated July 30, 2016, is annexed to the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Audit
Report of the Company submitted by the Secretarial Auditors M/s. Alwyn Jay & Co. does not contain

any adverse remark.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

No employee of the Company was in receipt of the remuneration as mentioned under Rule 5 (2) (i)
(ii) and (iii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

as amended from time to time.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to section 134(3)(a) extract of Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) of the Act is

annexed herewith in Form No. MGT-9.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the

design or operation were observed.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

In line with the requirement of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has necessary policies on prohibition of sexual harassment at
workplace. There were no cases filed of any sexual harassment by any employee including visitors or

other non-employee during the financial year ended March 31, 2016.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not invited/accepted any deposits, from the public/shareholders.

BOARD’S COMMENTS ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR
DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITORS OR SECRETARIAL AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers either in the Statutory
Auditors’ Report, Reports of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India or in the Secretarial
Auditors’ Report which require the Board’s comments thereon in terms of Section 134(3)(f) of the

Companies Act, 2013.



PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Your Company has not given/taken any Loans, Guarantees under Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES ON THE PRESCRIBED
FORM

In terms of Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of contracts or arrangements if any, with Related Parties are

given in the prescribed form AOC -2 hereunder:

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Nature  of | Duration Salient Justificatio | Date of | Amou | Date on
contracts/ar | of the | terms  of | n for | approv | nt which  the

rangements | contracts/ | the entering al by | paid special
/transaction | arrangem | contracts into such | the as resolution
ents/trans | or contracts Board advan | was passed
action arrangeme | or ces, if | in  General
nts or | arrangeme any meeting as

transaction | nts or required
including transaction under first
the wvalue, | ¢ proviso to
if any section 188

Nil

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.




Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms | Date of | Amount paid
contracts/arr | the of the | approval by | as advances,
angements/t | contracts/arr | contracts or | the Board if any
ransaction angements/t | arrangement
ransaction S or
transaction
including the
value, if any
Nil

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

e In the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed

e Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and judgments
and estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for
that period;

e Sufficient and proper care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
Company’s assets and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

e Annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

e The internal financial controls as laid dawn are adequate and were operating effectively.

e Proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS WERE PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

OR TRIBUNALSWHICH IMPACTS THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN

FUTURE.

During the period under review, there are no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals

against the Company impacting its status as a going concern and its operations.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO BOARD’S REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

{Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013}

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects

or programmes

The key areas identified under the CSR Policy for making strategic interventions are rural
infrastructure, social empowerment, education, environment, community welfare, healthcare,
etc. These include, but is not limited to, collaborative long-term funding for projects designed to
promote income-generating activities for tribal and the underprivileged, particularly women,
across various states; infrastructure support to schools & youth training centres, rural
electrification through solar street lights; financial aid for socio-economic empowerment of the
blind, disabled and other under-privileged sections of society. Further, we would like to extend
financial and other support during natural calamities in affected states. The CSR activities have
been inclusive in nature and as such the beneficiaries are spread across all sections of the

community.

Overview of the Projects undertaken during the Financial year 2015-16

a. The Company had sponsored the Prakritm Bharati Academy for environmental
sustainability initiative by sponsoring the setting up of a 30 K.W PV Solar Plant at Prakrit
Bharati Academy, Jaipur. The cost of the project is Rs. 16, 64,700/- (Rupees Sixteen lakhs

sixty four thousand seven hundred only.)

b. The Company under its CSR initiatives sponsored 2 Cancer Detection Camps at Kalyan for
deserving and poor women from Thane and neighboring areas below poverty line like
Kalyan, Bhivandi, Murbad, Sahapur, Karjat villages through SUADHA NGO. The total
expenses for the 2 camps amounted to Rs. 1,00,000/- and around 97 underprivileged

women benefited from the camp.

c. The contribution of Rs. 25 lakhs was made to the “Chief Ministers Public Relief Fund
(Tamil Nadu)” to assist the people in Chennai affected by the flood which caused massive

destruction of lives and properties in Chennai.



d. Your Company also assisted in the nutrition program/ mid-day meal project of
“Annamrita” ISKCON Food Relief Foundation” to eradicate hunger and malnutrition by

sponsoring 2 vehicles to be used to transport meal for the mid-day meal project.

The CSR Policy of the Company was approved by the CSR Committee on August 07, 2014 and
subsequently has been hosted on the website of the Company

http://www.idbicapital.com/doc%5Cpolicies%5CCSR.PDF

2. Composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2016:

Chairman: Shri P.P. Chhajed (DIN: 03544734)
Members: Shri Sivaram Swamy (DIN: 00041775)
Shri B.K Batra (DIN: 00015732)
Shri Nagaraj Garla (MD & CEO) (DIN: 06983880)

The functions of the Committee includes:-

- To formulate and recommend a CSR policy to the Board
- Torecommend amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities.

- To monitor the CSR activities of the company from time to time.

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: The average net profit of the
Company for the last three financial years calculated as specified by the Companies Act is Rs. 30,

82,66,667/-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):

The Company is required to spend Rs.61.65 Lakhs/- towards CSR.

5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
a. Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 44,54,800/-
b. Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 17,10,500/- /-(already committed)

C. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:


http://www.idbicapital.com/doc%5Cpolicies%5CCSR.PDF

Sr | Projects/ Sector Location | Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount
No | Activities of the | Outlay on the Project | expenditure spent
Project/ | (Budget) or Programs upto the | through
Programs reporting direct/im
period plementin
g agency
1. | Prakrit Environme | Jaipur, Rs.16,64,70 | Rs.16,64,700/- | Rs.16,64,700/- | Direct
Bharati ntal Rajastha | 0/-
Academy sustainabil | n
For ity
Installation
of Solar
Power Plant
2. | SUADHA Social Kalyan- 1,00,000/- 1,00,000/- 1,00,000/- Direct
NGO welfare Thane
for and Health | District
Undertaking
camps for
Cancer
detections
and related
Checkups of
underprivile
ged women
3. | Chief Social Delhi. Rs. Rs. 25,00,000/- | Rs. 25,00,000/- | Direct
Minister’s welfare At Tagore | 25,00,000/-
Public Relief Garden
Fund- Tamil and
Nadu Bindapur
outs,
4. | Annamitra Social Mumbai, | Rs. Rs. 1,90,500/- | Rs. 1,90,500/- Direct
ISKCON welfare Maharas | 19,00,500
Food Relief htra
Foundation

. In case the company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profits of the last three

financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the

amount in its Board report.

The Company has spent the entire amount, except a sum of Rs. 17, 10,500/-, which is a

committed to “Annamrita” ISKCON Food Relief Foundation and will be disbursed upon completion

of the project




7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of

CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.-

The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR activities is

in compliance with CSR objectives and the CSR Policy of the company.

Sd/- Sd/-
P.P. Chhajed NagarajGarla
Chairman CSR Committee Managing Director and CEO

(DIN: 03544734) (DIN: 06983880)



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO BOARD’S REPORT
Form AOC-I
(Pursuant to first provision to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in °)

1.| CIN

2. | Name of the subsidiary

3. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if

different from the holding company’s reporting period

4. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign

subsidiaries.

Share capital

Reserves & surplus
NOT APPLICABLE

Total assets

Total Liabilities

O o N o

Investments

10| Turnover

11| Profit before taxation

12| Provision for taxation

13| Profit after taxation

14| Proposed Dividend

15| % of shareholding

Note:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence N.A.
operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or N.A.

sold during the year.




Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(ASSOCIATE COMPANY)

1. | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2016
2. | Shares of Associate held by the company on
the year end
Number of Equity Shares 66660000
Amount of Investment in Associates (" in lacs) 6666
Extend of Holding % 33.33%

3. | Description of how there is significant The company has significant influence
influence through holding more than 20% of the
Equity Shares in the investee company
in terms of Accounting Standards 23
issued by ICAI
4. | Reason why the associate is not N.A.
Consolidated
5. | Networth attributable to Shareholding as 9717
per latest audited Balance Sheet (" in lacs)
6. | Profit / Loss for the year (" in lacs)
i. Considered in Consolidation 116
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 232

Note:

1. Names of associates which are yet to N.A
commence operations.
2. Names of associates which have been N.A

liguidated or sold during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Kishor Kharat
Chairman
DIN: 07266945

Sd/-

NagarajGarla

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 06983880




FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2016
{Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014}
REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN U65990MH1993GO0I075578

2.| Registration Date 14-Dec-1993

3.| Name of the Company | IDBI CAPITAL MARKETS & SECURITIES LIMITED

(FORMERLY IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LTD.)

4.| Category/Sub-category | WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF IDBI BANK LIMITED/

of the Company LIMITED BY SHARES

5.| Address of the 3"° FLOOR, MAFATLAL CENTRE,
Registered office & NARIMAN POINT,
contact details MUMBAI 400021.

TEL: +91-22-4322 1212

FAX: +91-22-2285 0785

EMAIL : info@idbicapital.com
Website: www.idbicapital.com

6.| Whether listed No
company yes/no
7.1 Name, Address & NOT APPLICABLE

contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer
Agent, if any.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated)

S. No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the

products / services Product/service | company

1 Investment Banking - 49% approx.

2 Retail Broking - 32% approx.



mailto:info@idbicapital.com
http://www.idbicapital.com/

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

NAMEAND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %of Applicable
ADDRESSOF SUBSIDIARY shares )
S. THE held Section
NO | COMPANY JASSOCIATE
1 IDBI BANK L65190MH2004G01148838 HOLDING 100% 2(46)
LIMITED
2. IDBI ASSET U65100MH2010PLC199319 ASSOCIATE 33.33% 2(6)
MANAGEMENT
LTD

VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

1 ) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning | No. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders of the year[As on 31-March-2015] | the year[As on 31-March-2016] | Change
during
Demat | Physical | Total | % of Demat | Physic | Total % of the
Total al Total year
Shares Shar
es
A. Promoter s
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
- 1281000 | 1281 | 100% | - 12810 | 12810 (100 | O
00 0000 0000 |0000 |%

e) Banks / Fl 0
f) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total 0 1281000 | 1281 | O 0 12810 | 12810 | O 0

(A)(1): 00 0000 0000 | 0000

0

(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals | - - - - - - - - -
b)Other— - - - - - - - - -
Individuals




c)Bodies Corp.

d)Banks/Fl

e) Any other

Sub-total
(A) (2):-

Total
shareholding of
promoters
(R)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

1281000
00

1281
0000

12810
0000

12810
0000

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
uptoRs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal




share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify)

Directors and their
relatives resident

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies — D
R

NRI DR

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by - - - - - -
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs

1281000 | 1281 | 100% | O 12810 | 12810
Grand Total 00 0000 0000 0000
(A+B+C) 0




ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the | % change
N Name of the year year in
No. of % of | %of No. of % of | %of shareholdi
Shares total | Shares Shares total | Shares ng during
Shares | Pledged / Shares | Pledged / | the year
of the | encumber of the | encumber
compa | edto compa | ed to
ny total ny total
shares shares
1281000 1281000
1 | IDBI Bank Ltd 00| 100% |0 00 100% |0 0

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase
/ decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer / NO CHANGE




iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year year
No. of % of total No. of | % of total
shares shares of the shares | shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year NOT APPLICABLE

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity

etc):

At the end of the year

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:-

Directors and key Managerial Personnel’s does not hold any share in the Company.

V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment- The Company has not availed any loan during the year and is debts free Company.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-A. Remuneration to Managing

Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager per Annum :

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager | Total Amount

Shri. Nagaraj Garla
(MD & CEO)
(DIN: 06983880)

1 Gross salary:
(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) of the Rs. 19,70,904/- Rs. 19,70,904/-
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Rs.5,10,756/- Rs.5,10,756/-

Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - -
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961




2 Stock Option - )
3 Sweat Equity - )
4 Commission - )
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

Rs.24,81,660/-

Rs.24,81,660/-PA

Ceiling as per the Act*

* Remuneration paid In FY 2015-16 is well within the limits prescribed under Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to other directors

S | Particulars of Name of Directors Total Amount
N. | Remuneration
1 | Independent Shri S. Ravi Shri P.P. Chhajed Shri Sivaram

Directors (DIN: 00009790) (DIN: 03544734) Swamy

(DIN: 00041775)

Fee for attending

board committee Rs.2,55,000/- Rs.2,35,000/- Rs. 2,20,000/- Rs.7,10,000/-

meetings

Commission 0 0 0

Others, please 0 0 0

specify

Total (1) Rs.2,55,000/- Rs.2,35,000/- Rs. 2,20,000/- Rs.7,10,000/-
2 | Other Non- Shri. B.K. Batra | Smt. Bhama

Executive Directors

(DIN: 0015732)

Krishnamurthy
(DIN: 02196839)

Fee for attending
board committee

meetings Rs. 2,55,000/- Rs.70,000/-- - Rs.3,25,000/-
Commission 0 0 0 0
Others, please

specify 0 0 0 0

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Rs. 5,10,000/-

Rs.3,05,000/-

Rs. 2,20,000/-

Rs. 10,35,000/-

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Rs. 5,10,000/-

Rs.3,05,000/-

Rs. 2,20,000/-

Rs.
10,35,000/-

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act*




* Independent Directors/ No- Executive Director are /is paid only Sitting Fees for attending
Board/Committee Meetings.
All Directors are entitled for reimbursement of expenses for attending Board/Committee Meetings.

The Remuneration/Fees for FY 2015-16 is well within the limits prescribed under Companies Act,

2013.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN

MD/MANAGER/WTD
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. V Ms. Total
Gopinath Christina
(CFO) D’souza
( Company
Secretary &
Compliance
officer)
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 26,46,595/- | 15,34,024/- | 41,80,619/-
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- | 3,38,009/- | - 3,38,009/-
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section - - -
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -
- as % of profit - -
others, specify... - -
5 Others, please specify - - -
Total 29,84,604/- | 15,34,024/- | 45,18,624/-




VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | if any (give
Companies Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Act Compounding
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding Nil
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty Nil

Punishment Nil

Compounding Nil




Alwyn Jay & Co.

Company Secretaries
Annex-103, Dimple Arcade, Asha Nagar, Kandivali (East),Mumbai 400101.
Branch Office: B-002, Gr. Floor, Shreepati-2, Royal Complex, Behind Olympia Tower,
Mira Road (E), Thane-401107 ; Tel:022-28125781 ; Mob: 09820465195; 09819334743
Email : alwyn.co@gmail.com Website:www.alwynjay.com

FORM NO. MR.3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31%" MARCH, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,
IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited.
(formerly known as IDBI Capital Market Services Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by the
IDBI Capital Markets & Securities Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).

The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct and statutory
compliance to express our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s statutory books, legal papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company, and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2016 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and that the Company has proper
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed,
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on
31*'March, 2016 according to the provisions of:




(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1856 (“SCRA") and the rules
made thereunder;

(i The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

{ivi The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’), with their
respective amendments, as applicable:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Merchant Bankers)
Rules, 1992;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers and
Sub-Brokers) Regulations, 1992;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and
Participants) Regulations, 1996; The Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 {(up to 14"
May, 2015) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 {effective 15" May, 2015).

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers)
Rules and Regulations, 1993;

fyThe Securities and Exchange Board of India {Underwriters) Regulations
1993; and

{v) Directions, guidelines, circulars and notifications issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India and other regulators that are
applicable to the business of the Company.

{vi) Labour law regulations and other rules applicable to the Company
including Payment of Wages Act, 1965, The Employees' Provident
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Rules thereon.

{(vii) Regulations under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and
Rules, regulations and process of obtaining know your customer (KYC)
documents and information as applicable to the business operations
of the Company.

We have also examined compliance of the Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.




During the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards
mentioned above.

We further report that -

(a} the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Non-Executive and Independent Directors;

(b) the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act;

(c) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting; and

{d) The minutes of the Board meetings have not identified any dissent by
members of the Board, hence we have no reason to believe that the
decisions by the Board were not approved by all the directors present.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with its size and operations to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period no material event or action has
taken place in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines and standards except that the Company, vide sharehoiders’
approval at the Annual General Meeting held on 24™ August, 2015, altered its
Articles of Association of the Company.

For ALWYN JAY & CO., T
Company Se%retaries Vs 2al \f\

NVe” LIS /
[Ronald D'Mello] .
Partner L
FCS No. 3818

Certificate of Practice No. 14353

Place: Mumbai.
Date: 19.903.20)




From MD’s Desk

| take immense pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of the company for FY 2015-16 after taking
charge as Managing Director and CEO in October last year. Though the year gone by was a very
challenging one in terms of revenue numbers, we have succeeded in achieving new things in the
year. The operating results though modest, considering the market environment and regulatory
changes which had an impact on our restructuring advisory business, was reasonably a good one.
More importantly we have been able to achieve profitability in all business segments in which we are
operating.

In the Investment Banking segment, despite the lag in pickup of economic activities, the advisory
group was able to generate a good amount of revenue for the year. To strengthen the efforts further
in this area, two new offices at Bangalore & Coimbatore have been opened. The Company has
bagged a prestigious mandate as Advisor to National Investment & Infrastructure Fund Trustee Ltd,
which is the Trustee to NIIF a 40,000 crore alternative investment fund set up by the Government of
India. Due to regulatory changes, there has been a significant fall in the debt restructuring mandates.
In view of this, focus was more on mandates from alternate business streams such as flexible
structuring, refinancing of debt and strategic debt restructuring.

On the Broking front, our online trading has migrated to a new platform which seamlessly integrates
front and back office operations and which is also capable of executing substantially higher volumes.
We have launched a Mobile app for online trading in the third quarter of FY 16, which has been
widely accepted by our clients. The facilities/capabilities in broking have been gradually ramping up
and should enhance the product offerings and earnings of the company in the years ahead.

We were able to step up our research activities significantly during the year, gaining capability to
cover important sectors and companies. Our research reports have been well received by market
participants and we see our capability to deliver quality research report as an important enabler in
the Institutional Equities business. This will also enhance visibility and support other lines of
business. The Institutional broking vertical which was lagging behind all these years started picking
momentum and is on the path to be among the preferred broker for domestic institutions.




The Indian economy saw a pick-up in GDP growth in FY16 eclipsing China as the fastest-growing
economy in the world. Going forward, we believe our revenue will grow with quantum leap though
there could be volatility in earnings, given the lines of business we operate in. In the coming years, it
will be our endeavor to continue the work of building profitable businesses both in Investment
Banking and Broking space.

Going forward, we expect the Indian economy to grow strongly, which will fuel requirement of
equity and debt capital. In the Investment Banking space while we will be focusing on Capital Market
and Private Equity to augment the revenue, Advisory business will continue to be the major revenue
generator. With a view to establish an International presence, the Company is in the process of
setting up an office at the Dubai International Financial Centre. We endeavor to have a global
presence in the next three years across Singapore / Hongkong / UK & Middle East.

Retail group shall be launching Retail PMS and Currency Derivatives in FY17 which will add value and
will give a boost in increasing Retail Revenues. An end to end online Trading and Demat account
opening which will help the client to open Trading account with IDBI Capital is also on the anvil.

To gain capability to capitalize on the opportunities ahead, we are recruiting management graduates
from premier institutes, chartered accountants and market professionals. We have set a very
ambitious target in all business verticals and with a professional team in place we expect to surpass
these numbers.

To summarize, we endeavour to focus on the following ten Dots:

e Successful transformation from CDR to SDR and associate with the corporates and banks at
all three cycles i.e. conversion of debt into equity, management of the company and finding
the right investor.

e Focus on Govt business by pro-active engagement with the Central and State Governments.

e Leverage corporate relationships of our parent to scale up revenues from Capital Market and
M&A space.

e Pro-active engagement with Institutions to become preferred institutional broker.

e To tap possible opportunities in private equity space.

e Focus on System stability, sustainability and value creation.

e Focus on HNI business and introduction of retail PMS to scale up retail revenue stream.
e Enhanced engagement with the parent to take out all business possibilities.

e To re-design the entire retail broking business model to cut costs and increase our revenue by
differentiated customer delivery models.

e Make every effort to support and create an environment in which employees can achieve
your highest level of excellence (focus on employee friendly and leadership culture).



| would like to place on record the invaluable guidance provided by our Chairman, Shri Kishor Kharat
and the entire Board of Directors. | would like to thank IDBI Bank, our 100 % stake holder for their
valuable support and guidance. | am also grateful to our valued clients, SEBI, NSE, BSE, NSDL and
other regulators for their continued support. Human resources being the most valuable asset in a
service organization, | wish to thank each and every employee of IDBI Capital for his/her contribution
to the Company’s progress.

With best regards,

NAGARAJ GARLA
MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

The preparation of Financial Statements of IDBI Capital Market Services Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013 (Act) is the responsibility ol the management
of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Qection 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on
he Pinancial Statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit 1
accordance with standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143{'1{}) of the Act. This

< stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 25 April 2016.

[ on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. have conducted a
Supplementary Audit under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the Financial Statements ol
IDBI Capital Market Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016. This
Supplementary Audit has been carried out independently without access 10 the working
papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting
cocords. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which

would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditor’s Report.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

L

(Roop Rashi)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit and
ex-officio Member, Audit Board-1, Mumba

Place : Mumbat
Date @ |3 'jL}La 2016



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT. 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF 1DBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

The preparation of consolidated Financial Statements of 1DBI Capital Market
Services Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with the I'manci;:l!
reporting  framework prescribed  under  the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management ol the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) read with section
129(4) of the Act is responsible.for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under
Section 143 read with scction 129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to

have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 25 April 2016,

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. have conducted a
Supplementary Audit under section 143(0)(a) rcad with section 129(4) of the Act ol the
consolidated Financial Statements of 1DBI Capital Market Services Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2016. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statement of
IDBI Capital Market Services Limited, but did not conduct supplementary audit ol the
financial statements of IDB1 Asset Management Limited for the year ended on that date.
This Supplementary Audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Statutory Auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the

accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would

give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditor’s Report.

For and on the behalf of the

Comptroller and Audimirnl ol India

(Roop Rashi)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit and
ex-oflicio Member. Audit Board-l1. Mumbai

Place : Mumbai
Date : 13 Jol, «0O\6

Q
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDBI Capital Market Services
Limited (the Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (* the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of approprate accounting policies;, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were
operating effectively for the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
[rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

AUDITORS® RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the act and the rules
made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, wisSTReR e to fraud or
erTor.
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In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the company's director, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India;

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2016:

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date; and

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

I. As required by the Companies ( Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 ( “the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure *A’, a statecment on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards referred to in section 133 of the Act, read with the rule 7 of the Companies
{ Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 1s
disqualified as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub
section (2) of section 164 of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B"; and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

1} The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial
position in its financial statement. (Refer Note No. 31 to the Financial Statements)

2) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

3) There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we report that :-

a)

b)

<)

d)

the company does not have any Ireehold or leasehold land,

During the vear under consideration, the company has written off old receivables
amounting to Rs. 1528.11 Lacs as the possibility of their recoveries were very less.

There were no inventories lying with third parties. Further, no assets were received as
gift/grant from Govt. or otheér authorities.

In addition, as per sub directions issued by the office of C& AG, we report that during the

year. there were no cases of waiver of fees/ reversal of accounted fees, except that the
company has made one time settlement(OTS) with 3 clients as per details given below.
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(Rs. In Lacs)
| S1. Amount Settled Amount Reasons for OTS '
Due/ Amount waived/
Receivable Written off

I. 470.52 175.18 295.34 | The client was in deep financial
crunch. Amounts were very old
and very little securities were
available with the client to settle
the dues.

FA 81.00 24.82 26.18 --ido--

3. 56.18 45.00 11.18 | Though the company had filed
winding up proceedings in the
High Court, considering the long
drawn process in the courts, OTS
was done.

607.70 245.00 362.70

For A. Sachdev & Co,
Chartered Accountants

FRN - 001307C
s e
“[Manish Agarwal)

Partner

Mumbai
Apnl 25, 2016
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ANNEXEURE ‘A’ REFERRED TO IN THE AUDITORS' REPORT of IDBI CAPITAL
MARKET SERVICES LTD. FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31" MARCH 2016

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Company does physical verification once every three years. Physical verification of fixed
assets was last done during the financial year 2014-15. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(¢ ) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the Company,

(ii) As the Company is a service company, it does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the clause
(ii) (@) to (ii) (¢) of the paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or  other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. Hence, the
clause (iii) (a) and (iii) (b) of the paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has complied with the provisions of section 183 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans
and investments made,

(v} In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its members.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and explanation given to us by the management, the Central
Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, emplovees® state insurance, income
lax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities and there are no undisputed dues outstanding as on 31st March 2016 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Excise Duty, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, value added tax or Cess which have not been

deposited on the account of any dispute except for the following amounts relating to
mncome tax.
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Name of | Nature of | Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute Dues (Rs.) which the | the dispute is

amount relates | pending

Income Tax Act | Income tax | 458.79 Lacs | F.Y. 2011-12 CIT(Appeals-

1961 and Interest 9), Mumbai
Income Tax Act | Income tax | 20.16 Lacs | F.Y. 2012-13 CIT(Appeals-
1961 and Interest 9). Mumbai

(viii) According 1o the books of account and records of the company, no amount is due 1o financial
institutions or bank or debenture holders.

(ix} The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of
the Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented by the
Management and based on our examination of the books and records of the company, no
material fraud on or by the Company was noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, in view of MCA circular dated 5"
June, 2015, the provisions of managerial remuneration as per provisions of section 197 are not
applicable in case of governmenl company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii1) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 1s not required to be
registered under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For A. Sachdev & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 001307C

Mo & A
“(Manish Agarwal)
Partner
Membership No.- 078628

Mumbai
Apnl 25, 2016
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IDBI Capital market
Services Ltd. as of 31" March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*ICAT).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeqguate internal
linancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility i1s 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over linancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprupnaie o provide a basis
for our audit opinion en the Company's internal financial controls system ov 1al reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the wransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matenal respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over [inancial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For A, Sachdev & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 001307C

M pre'k Tmﬂ-ﬁ
%/ (Manish Agarwal)
= Partner
Membership No.- 078628

Mumbai
April 25, 2016




108I CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
{CIN: UBS990MMH1F9IGOI0TSS TE
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2016

For A Sachdev & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001307C

Kishor Kharat

’ ) Chairman
MMI« i DIN: 07266945
ManishAgarwal |
Partner ﬁ_‘;ﬂ‘l e
M. No. 078628 Christina &' a
Company: ary
Place: Mumbai

Date : 25 April 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
As At As At
v N 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
I. EQUITY B LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' Funds
{a) Share Capital 2 12,810 12,810
ib) Reserves and Surpius 3 18,495 18,800
31.305 31,610
(2} Current Liabilities
{a) Trade payables 4 1,459 532
{b) Other current labilities 5 316 581
{c) Short-term provisions 6 149 1,063
1,924 2,176
TOTAL 33,229 33,786
1. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{1) {a) Fixed Assets 7
(I} Tangible assets 719 589
(i} Intangible assets 224 46
(Hi} Capital work-in-progress 18 240
(iv) Intangible assets under development . 207
b} Non-current investmeants 8,654 8,559
(¢} Deferrad tax assits {net) 9 166 423
(d} Lomg-term loans and advances 10 198 198
9,979 10,262
{2]) Current Assets
(a) Current investments 11 456 462
(b) Trade receivables 12 B.511 B 416
{c) Cashand Bank balantes 13 11,829 13537
(d) Short-term loans and advances 14 2,284 909
{e} Other current assets 15 170 200
23,250 23,524
TOTAL 313,229 33,786
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Other Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 2to 36
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

W@«lﬂ

Nagaraj Garla
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 06983880

< %M
b, V. Gopinath
Chief Financial Officer




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
[CIN: UBS990MH1993G0MT5578)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
Seiste N For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
' 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
I Revenue from Operations 16 5,792 T.022
I |Other Income 17 1,002 1.564
i, Total Revenue (I + 1) 6,794 B 586
. Expenses
Employee 8enefits Expense 18 1,938 1.086
Operating Expenses 19 1,258 1,278
Administrative Expenses 20 1,064 1.124
Loss on Sale of Assets (0) 0
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses (Refer Note 7) 189 168
Provision for Gratuily and Leave Encashmaent (Refer Note 27 (i) 9 22
Provision for Doubtful Debts (Refer Note 12) (617) aas
Provision for Long Term Investments (Refer Note 13 a)) - 1,043
Bad Debts Written O 1,528 41%
Total Expenses 5,369 6,589
V.  |Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax [I11-1V) 1,425 1997 |
Vi, Exceptional items (Refer Note 7 & Note 232} - {244)
Vi,  |Profit Before Tax (V -VI) 1,415 1,241
Vill.  |Tax Expense
{1) Current Tax 240 1,200
{2) Defarred Tax (Refer Note 8 & Note 21) 257 {118)
IX. Profit for the period from continuing operations (VII -VIil) 928 1,150
8 Profit for the year 928 1,150
————— e
X, Earnings per equity share [Nominal value per share Rs. 10 each]
(1) Basic 19 0.72 0.85
(2] Diluted 072 0.89
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Other Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 210 36
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For A Sachdev & Co -
Chartered Accountants h}f Q""‘L’""&
Firm Registration No: 001307C
KishoTRarat Nagaraj Garla
M . ’ Chairman Managing Director & CEO
fpa e T DIN: 07266945 DIN: D6983880
ManishRgarwal |’ 'S
Partner *-::'S-Q.J\_ﬁ-—"-“""-
M. Na. 078628 V. Gopinath
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date : 25 April 2016




DB CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
{CIM, LSRN [ 39 G IN0 TS 1)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

(Rs in Lakha)
For TheYear Ended  For TheYear Ended
31.03.2016 21.03.2015
Cash Flows from Operation Activitics
#rofit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations|before tax) 1,425 Logy
Adjustrmands for
Dapredigtion 183 oy
Froviugn for Gratuty & Lesve encashment 9 -2
Prowitian foe Doubtiul Debls {617} 44%
Brawaan for Mon-cutnend nuesimenty 3 1043
Bag Debts written off 1,528 418
(Profirl/uoss on sale of Non:-Current investments (12} (=9
{Frofai/uass on valuation of Cutrent Investments 1 :
{Profit]/Loss on sale of Flxed Assets (o) o
Dividend Income (25} {19
Iteres! Income (517] (175
Dperating Profit before working capital changes 1.991 3,245
Adjustrents 1of working Capital
fncrease)/Decrease in Trade recelvables (1,006} {1,138}
[increase )/ Decreass in Other Curcent Adsats a0 151
(ingrease)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances . .
{increave)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (574} 6%
Incresve/(Decrease) in Short Term Proviiions 12 130}
ingreade/|Decraase) in Trade payabiey and other cutrent labilites 652 (175
Met Change in working capital (1.286] 515
Direct taxes pidd (MNet) {1,006) {1,285}
Met cash flow from Operating Activities (4] _ (301) 14437 |
Cash flow from investing Activities
Purchase of Fied Assets (a97) 125
Coapitsd Agvance tor Soffware K& Avsety axs {427
Procecds from wié of fierd assets [} D
Procieedy from sale of Investments BS 1,768
Purchase of Investmeniy [173) %35)
mwestmaniy i Fellow. Subsadiary . |2, 556)
Proceedy from Maturity of Fleed Ceposts BB LA e
Degloyment in Flued Deposity 4,955] [ 7485
Cividend received 25 19
Net cash flow from Investing Activities  [B) lﬁ“ 11.410)
Cazh Mgw frpem Fenancing Activities
Diwidend Paid {1,753} {1.281)
Wet cash flow from Financing Activities  [C) L7 1. i81)
Wet increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivaients|A+8+C) [283] [1.24%)

Cash and Cash eguivalents as at April 1,2015

*

7,157 8408

Cash and Cath equivalents a3 at March 31,2016 EE74 7.157
Hobe L The sbiowe coih Moo statamant Rl Bedn prepentd By uling the

ettt Feelhod wetoul m AcCouniing Standard 3 - ‘Caih Vow Statement’

bpbcifeed under nedtion 133 of the Compamies Act JULY read with rule 7

of Pt cocmpanies { Acteunty | Rules 7054

4, Tl aenid Coe® Bguiividendy condist of resh on Leivd, bank Dalsnoel with banky

Ay per our sTtached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For A Sachdev & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 001307C




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LTD
(CIN: U5990MH1993G0I075578])
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1
Significant Accounting Policies

a) Accounting Convention

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except in case of assets for which
provision for impairment is made and revaluation is carried out. The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous
year

bB) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates Is recognised in accordance with the
requirements of the respective accounting standard.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non
current classification of assets and liabilities.

¢l Fixed assets and Depreciation
.1  TANGIBLE ASSETS

Fixed Assets are valued at original cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

c.2  Fixed Assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as specified in Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013 on a straight-line method, Assets retired from active use
are fully depreciated. Assets having individual value of less than Rs.5,000, in the year
of acquisition and assets retired from active use are fully depreciated.

c.3  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are measured at cost of acquisition/development and amortised
over their estimated economic life on a straight-line method.

Computer Software — 3 years.
Web Trading Portal - 3 years.
Stock Exchange Membership Card - at 4.75% p.a.




c4 Management estimates the economic value of Bombay Stock Exchange Trading
Rights based on the value in use. The company amortises it over 21 years unless
there is evidence that its useful life is shorter.

dl Impairment of Assets:

d.1  The carrying amount of assets, is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any Indication of impairment If any such indication exists,
recoverable amount of the assets [s estimated.

d.2  An Impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in the use, which is determined,
based on the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present values. All
iImpairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

d.3 Animpairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount and is recognized in the profit and loss account.

e] Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account under ‘Rent
Rates and Taxes' on a Straight Line Basis over the lease term.

fi  Investments and Securities held as stock-in-trade

f.1  Investments are classified into non-current and current investments. Securities and
other financial assets acquired and held for earning income by way of dividend and
interest and for the purpose of capital appreciation are classified as non-current
investments and are valued at their cost of acquisition. Decline in their value other
than tempaorary, if any, is recognized. Current investments are carried at lower of cost
or market value. Securities acquired in the market making process as market maker
are classified as Current investments irrespective of the period of holding,

f2 Securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading are
considered as stock-in-trade and regarded as current assets.

Securities held as stock-in-trade category wise are valued at lower of cost or
market/fair value. Cost is derived by following the weighted average method
considering only outright transactions. Market value is determined based on market
quotes for actual trades and where such guotes are not available, fair value is
determined, in the case of debt securities, with reference to yields on securities of
similar maturity and credit standing, and in the case of equities, with reference to the
break-up value as per the fast availlable balance sheet. Each security is valued
individually. The depreciation, if any, for each security is provided and the
appreciation, if any, is ignored,

f.3 Premium paid on government securities held as investment is amortized over the
tenor of the instrument.
gl Revenue Recognition

g1 Total consideration paid or received on purchase or sale, on outright basis, of
coupon-bearing debt securities is identified separately as principal consideration and
accrued interest. Amount paid as accrued interest on purchase, and received on sal
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n.1

h.2

h.3

n.4

Interest on fixed coupon debt securities, held as on the Balance Sheet date, is
accrued for the broken period at the coupon rate. Interest on floating rate securities
is accrued at rates determined as per the terms of the issue,

Profit on Sale of Investments is recognized on the settlement date. It represents the
excess of Sale / Redemption proceeds over the acquisition cost. Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis. Profit on sale of Investments is netted with loss on sale
of investments.

Devolvement of equity shares in respect of issues underwritten by the company are
treated as investments. Underwriting income on these issues are credited to profit
and loss account and not netted against the value of investments.

Brokerage and commission earned on secondary market operations is recognized on
the basis of trade dates. Brokerage on online portal operations is recognized on the
basis of trade dates. Brokerage and commission in respect of issue marketing and
resource mobilization are accrued to the extent of availability of information.
Depository, Portfolio Management and other fees are accounted for on accrual basis.
Dividend is recognised when the company’s right to receive payment is established
by the bhalance sheet date. Revenue excludes Service Tax. wherever recovered.
Revenue from issue management, loan syndication and financial advisory services is
recognised as per terms of agreement with the client.

Transactions in Futures and Options

Initial Margin payable at the time of entering into futures contract / sale of options is
adjusted against the deposits with the exchanges in the form of fixed deposits, cash
deposits and securities.

Transactions in Future contracts are accounted as Purchase and Sales at the notional
trade value of the contract. The open interest in futures as at the Balance Sheet date
is netted by its notional value.

The difference in the settlement price or exchange closing price of the previous day
and exchange closing price of the subsequent day, paid to or received from the
exchange is treated as Mark to Market Margin. The balance in the Mark to Market
Margin Account represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of
movement in the prices of open interest in futures contracts till the balance sheet
date. Net debit balance in the Mark to Market Margin Account is charged off to
revenue whereas net credit balance is shown under current liabilities.

Premium paid or received on purchase and sale of options and the difference paid or
received on exercise of options is accounted as Purchases or Sales. In case of open
interest in options sold as on the balance sheet date, prowvision Is made for the
amount by which premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date exceeds the
premium received for those options. The excess of premium received over the
premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date is not recognised. Simllarly, in case of
options bought, provision is made for the amount by which the premium paid for the
option exceeds the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date and the excess of
premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date over the premium paid is ignored. In
case of multiple open positions, provision is made or excess premiums are ignored
after netting off the balances in buy as well as sell positions.
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Interest Rate Swaps

Assets and Liabilities in respect of notional principal amount of Interest Rate Swaps of
the discontinued operations pertaining to Primary Dealership operations are netted,
Gain or loss on Interest Rate Swaps is accounted for on due dates as per the terms of
the contract.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of the transaction. At the year end, monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are reported using the closing rate of exchange. Exchange difference arising
thereon and on realization / payments of foreign exchange are accounted as income or
expenses in the relevant year

Turnover

Purchases and sales of dated government securities, treasury bills and other securities
are disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account, with a view to indicating the turnover of
funds of the company and include only outright transactions. For this purpose, sales
also include redemption proceeds, if any, when these securities are held by the
company till the date of maturity,

Employee benefits

The Company's contribution on account of retirement benefits in the form of
Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund is charged to revenue, The gratuity and
leave encashment liability of the company are covered under the scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of india and the yearly contribution is paid to LIC.

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged
to the Profit & Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective
funds are due.

The Company contributes to an approved Group Gratuity Policy with the LIC of India.
Gratuity liability are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation as per AS 15 (Revised) made at the end of each financial year
based on the projected unit credit method.

The Company contributes to the Group Leave Encashment Policy with the LIC of
india. Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the profit and loss account and are
not deferred.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with
Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings per Share. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the
net profit or loss for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the
results are anti-dilutive,
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Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method setl out in Accounting
standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements and presents the cash flows by operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company,

Cash and Cash equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on
hand and demand deposits with banks.

Taxation

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid/ recovered from the tax
authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act.

The tax effect of the timing differences that result between taxable income and
accounting income and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods
are recorded as a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability, Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to timing
differences. They are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
and tax regulations as at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient taxable income will be available in future, against
which the deferred tax assets can be realized; however where there is unabsorbed
depreciation and carried forward losses, deferred tax assets is created only if there is
virtual certainty of realization of assets.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income
will be avallable against which the deferred tax asset can be realized.

Tax credit is recognized in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) as per the
provisions of Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 based on convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax within the statutory time
frame and is reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event.
It Is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihcod of outflow of resources Is remote, no provision or disclosure is made,
Cantingent Assets are not recognized.

Bad and doubtful assets are identified after carrying out a case by case review of all
outstanding debts. Provisions are made on doubtful debts on management’s
evaluation of their realisability, In case the chances of recovery do not exist in a ylluf
the doubtful debts, the same shall be written off,




ID8I Capital Market Services Ltd.
(CIN: UBSPR0MMNI39IGON0TSSTE)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

Note 2
SHARE CAPITAL

{Rs in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015
e Dol Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 200,000,000 20,000 200,000,000 20,000
Issued
Eguity Shares of Rs. 10 each 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12.810
Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully Paid up 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810
Tatal 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810

Note 2{a)
Reconciliation ol Number of Shares

(Rs in lakhs)

1.03.201 .
Equity Shares 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 128,100,000 11,810 128,100,000 12,810
Shares issued during the year - A
Shares bought back during the year : - . .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810

Note 2(b)
Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holdar of equity shares is entitied to one vote

per share

In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recieve remaining assets of the company, after
pistribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of aquity shares held by the share holders

Note 2|c)
Out of Equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its Holding company are as follows:
{Rs in lakhs)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
E Sh
i dion Number Amount Number Amount
IDBI Bank ttd [Holding Company] along with its
AOMINees 178,100,000 12.810 128,100,000 12.810
Note 2(d)
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
ity Shares of Rs 10 each id
e hulli:pnid i Number % of holding Number % of holding
D81 Bank Ltd [Holding Company} along with its
NOMINEEs 128,100,000 100% 128,100,000 160%
Note 2{e)

Aggregate number of equity shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date:

31.03.2016

31.03.2015

21.03.2014

Eguity Shares bought back by the company

31.03.201.2




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(E1N: UESS0MH993GOI0TS578)

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
As At Ay At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015%
MNote 3
Reserves and Surplus
a) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 1,190 7.1%0
Add. Current Year Transfes . n
Less; Written Back in Current Year . -
Closing Balance 7,190 7,190
b} General Reserve
Opening Balance 11,250 11,086
Less: Provision for Depreciation of earher years (net of deferred tax)* - 6
Add: Current Year Transter - 200
Less: Written Back in Current Year - -
Closing Balance 11,250 11,250
*Heler Note T & Note 22
¢} Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 360 336
Net Profit For the current year 928 1,150
{+) Transfer from Reserves
Lesy: Appropriations
Interimn Dividend (1,025)
Tax on Interim Dividend {208) -
Praposed Dividend = {763)
Tax on Proposed Dividend . {157
Transfer to Reserves . {200)
falance at the end of the year 55 160
TOTAL 18,495 18 BOO
Note 4
Trade Payables”
a) Trade Payables 316 137
b) Others - Client's settiement dues 1,143 355
TOTAL 1,459 532
*Refer Note 21 (ialormation roguined unded MSMED Act 2006)
Note 5
Other Current Liabilities
a) Sundry Deposits 85 151
b} Margin Money Deposits 37 270
cj Statutory Dues * 54 26
a) Others 140 134
TOTAL 316 581
*Raliti Note 16 fal
Note B
Short Term Provisions
a) Provision for employeei benefit 144 132
b} Other Provisions 5 5
¢l Proposed Dividend - 769
d) Tax on Proposed Dividend - 157
TOTAL 149 1.063
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D81 CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(CI%: UGSSS0MH1IBIIGOIOTS5TH)

NOTES EORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

[:;‘_h Lakhs}

Face Value Ry, Quantity

Ks At

31.03.2016 _ Quantity

31.03.2015

MNowe B
Non-Current Investments’

Trade Investments - Long Term
investment in Equity Instfuments
Equity Shares - Unguoted, Fully paid up
The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd"

Equity Shares - Quoted, Fully paid up

Aban Ofshore L1d

(i b e prowidon gihes than bemporary dvmmaben = selog B Gl L2015
g 10 ieenj

Bajaj Hendustan Sugar Lid
Lid conil lesi providiah eihar Dhdn Depoeary Simanution m vshss R Wi DLS

M 50 faca)

OLF Lid

(AT coat legl provibion olhit then Ienparary dimmuiss w velee iy Wi [ I01%
T T A

Gokdrman Sachs Mutual Fund Nifty Bees'

India Cement Ltd

(&% cont less preniiion ofher than temparery direautEan n vahes Rz N (3015
[ s ATTEY

Mitcon Contultancy Kk Eagnesnng Serviced Lid

NHPE Lin

NTPC Lid

Cpal Lunury Time Progucts Lid

Punj Liowyd Lta
(AL ol hess prowmEm ot (e Termoorery diranuton movaiue Bs Wl (J015
Bs Lk mct)

Relwnce Communication Lid
(g coul eys prowsnon other then temporery dirmimsbicn m vaipe B Nl {7015
Bs & lari)

Peliante Infrastructure Lid
(AR Con? heyy praekbions othonr Than tamgarery dirmnbion m yabae By Nl (J05%
i B el

Rirligrece induskries Lid
Thepo Enginesning Lid
WTH Inttustres Ltd

LR el wud peouiln ctiai EPumn {emporaty dirmimglwn mowelas B 800 [ FOLS
By TR luci)

Equity Index Funds -Quoted’, Fully pald up
DB Nifty Index Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

irvestments in debentures or bonds
Cuoted, Fuily paid up
GOY -7 16% GO 2023

NTPL Limited 5r-54 843 NCD I5MAZS FYRS12.5
[Retur bote 24 ic))

Investmpnt in Associate Company
Unguoted, Fully paid up
KR Asset Managemend Lid
{Latent of Helding CF, FE33% [PY 33 33%) of total pokd up squity shave
L
| ptar bicte 33)
Tortal

Appregale value of guoled irvestments

Cosl

Market value

Aggregate value of unquoted mvestments

Cost

Aggreguls provision for diminution in value af invesiments

1 AN Investmients arg stated at cost / cost leds dimunition in valie

pther than temporary _
1. For Mutual Funds, Net Assat Value 15 taken a5 Market Vadue

10
10

10
10
10
10

10

10
10

10

1,000,000
12,50

1, Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the company

iMater Note 28 & Note 25 for orthere detaitsl

70,694

78,758
17,140

Q.09
38,825

500,000
15,000
301,000
4,500

2,000
6,000

16,920
24,600
2,992 85D

828,350

15.000

66,660,000

76

166
30
ml

201

139

6,666

4,883

70,654

17,140

0.08
18,825

40,000
500,000
15,000
301,000
4500

6,000

16920
14,600
2,992.850

66,660,000

18

10

76

25
166
a0
L H

m

439

B

6,666

8,552

4,788
1.348

6.666
2,895




NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

IDB1 CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
[CIN: UBS990MMH 1993GON0TSST8)

{Rs in lakhs)
As At As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015%
Note 9
Deferred tax
Deferred Tax Liability
On account of uming differences — Depreciation 132 93
TOTAL 132 a3
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Doubtful debts 2717 491
Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment 11 7
Degreciation on axpired assets a 16
inadmissable expenses u/s 438 of LT, Act 6 2
TOTAL 298 516
Net Deferred Tax (Assets) r 166 423
Note 10 "
Long Term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Securily Deposits® 1598 198
TOTAL 198 198

*inciudey depoity refered i Note 24




IDB) CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
[CTM: UESS90MH1S9IGOINTSS TE]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)

As At

As At

Face Value Rs. Quantity 31.03.2016 Quantity 31.03.2015

Note 11

Current Investments
Trade Investments - Short Term
Investment in Equity Instruments
(AL Tower of conl or market valus)
Quoted, Fully paid up
Thejo Engineerng L1d
[Refer Note 25)
Opal Luxury Time Products Ltd
[Refes Mote 25)

Agpregate value of quoted investments
Cost
Market Value

10 177,600 341

10 120.000 115

Total 456
470

456

201,000 387
85,000 75
462

462

66




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED

(CIN: LUESSS0MH 199 3GOI0TS5TE]
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016
[Rs In lakhs
As At Ay AL
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 12
Trade Receivables®
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Outstanding for penod exceeding six months 5,123 5,677
Other Debts _15&?__ 1,712 _@& B111
{Unsecured, Considered doubtiul)
Outsianding for period exceading #ix months 1,594 1,712
Other Debts & Fd
Less: Prowisons for Doubtiul Debis {801} 799 (1,419) 2495
TOTAL 8,511 8416
*Trade Apceivables sre sublect to confirmaticng
Note 13
Cash & Bank Balances
Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash on hand 1 2
Bafances with banks 3,373 3374 2,455 2,457
Current Investments (Highly Liquid)
1081 Liguid Fund - Growth - Direct 3,500 4,700
Upits C.¥ 215,791.259 (P ¥.113,549,683)
Other Bank Balances
Bank Fixed Deposits - more than 12 months
- Pledged with Stock Exchanges for margin 4,575 4575
- pthers 380 4,955 1,805 6,280
TOTAL 11,829 13,537
Note 14
Short Term Loans & Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advance Recoverable in cash or kind
Amount recoverable from Related Parties: 1 4
Sundry Deposits 26 6
Others
Advance 10 Sarvice Providers 24 7
Others 713 764 159 196
Advance Tan & Tax Deducted at Source (net of provisions)* 1,520 713
TOTAL 2,284 203
" Roder Nate 36 (k)
Note 15
Other Current Assets
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 157 187
Accrued Imterest on GOI Securities 13 13
TOTAL 170 400




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED

(CIN: UESTFOMMH1993GOI0T5578)

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

{Rs in lakhs
For TheYear Ended For TheYear Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 16
Revenue Fram Operations
Brokerage, Commission & Fees 5,711 6,951
Portfollo Management Services 16 13
income from Deposttory Services 54 56
TOTAL 5,792 7022
Note 17
Other Income
Dividend Income 25 19
Income from Mutual fund redemptions 385 Baa
Profit on Sale of Investments 12 59
Loss on Valuation of Current Investments (11)
Cther Non-operating Income
interest Recaived on Bonds/Fixed Depasits 517 519
Interest / Discount on G-sec / Treasury Bills 36 36
interest Recelved on Income Tax Refund = 256
Miscellaneous Incame 38 31
TOTAL 1,002 1,564
Note 18
Employee Benfits Expense®
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 1,792 1941
Contribution to Provident and other funds 115 106
Other benefits 1 9
TOTAL 1,938 2.086
= Disglosure reguivest By A% 15 on Employes benefity: Rete Note 17
MNote 19
Operating Expenses
Brokerage Paid 261 301
Operating Charges 152 155
Computer Maintenance Expenses 155 145
Marketing Expenses 14 18
Professional Charges 7 37
Franking/5tamp Expenses 66 |
Manpower Hire Charges 282 2712
Loss on Error Trade 1 2
TOTAL 1,258 1,278
MNote 20
Administrative Expenies
Rent (Mafer Note 28] 570 568
Electricty Charges L] T
Rates B taxes 14 38
ingurance 6 b
Repairs & Maintenance 58 54
Travelling & conveyance 95 91
Communication Expenses 117 136
Printing & Stationery 32 31
Sitting fees to directors 10 4
Contribution towards C5A 52 65
Auditors Remuneration
Audit Fees B b
Tax Audit Fees 1 1
Others - 2
Prigr Period items [Net) [ 5
Misceflaneous expenses 17 35
TOTAL 1,064 1,124




iDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN: U65390MH1993GOI0T5578)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

21.

22.

23,
a) Following Non-Current Investments are carried at cost. The management estimates the

The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any,
relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest paid/ payable as required
under the said act have not been given. (Refer Note 4)

The company had revised its policy for providing depreciation on fixed assets effective from
April 1, 2014, The company had changed the estimated useful life of fixed assets in line with
the recommended useful life as per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
Consequently, an amount of Rs 36.69 lacs (net of deferred tax of Rs. 15.71 lakhs) had been
charged to the opening balance of General Reserves in respect of assets whose useful
remaining life is Nil as at April 1, 2014. In respect of remaining tangible assets, the Company
had with retrospective effect changed its method of providing depreciation from the ‘Written
Down Value' method, at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 to
‘Straight Line’” method, over their estimated useful life as specified in Schedule |l to Companies
Act 2013. Accordingly, company had recognised an amount of Rs 243.86 lakhs in Statement of
Profit & Loss being additional depreciation charged in the earlier years which had been shown
as an "Exceptional item’ in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2015. This
had resulted in higher depreciation charge for the year ended 31.03.2015 to the extent of Rs.
68.12 lakhs and the profit is lower to this extent. (Refer Note 7)

diminution in the value other than temporary in respect of these non-current investments.
Accordingly a provision for diminution in the value amounting to Rs. Nil lakhs (P.¥Y. Rs.
1043.40 lakhs) has been created by charge to the statement of profit and loss during the
year. (Refer Note 8)

padl v"":“"““ S:;:?;;f ni:;:.;:::he
: 45 an dliue per
Scrip Name Qty 31.03.16 ihite ih::e val:ll: T::':;::an
Rs lakhs Rs Re fakhs
201%-16 2014-15
VTX Industiies Ltd 2992850 2992 85 150 100 - 918.00
| Aban Offshore Lid 800 29.13 176.70 3640.57 - 10.81
DLF Ltd 17140 150.43 114.60 877.67 - 54.40
| India Cements Ltd 38R25 101.40 B86.20 261.17 - 24.63
| Rellance 2000 11.20 50.00 560.00 - 4.03
Communications Ltd
| Reliance 5000 111.31 533.60 1855.21 - 31.04
. Infrastructure Ltd
Bajaj Hindustan Sugar 28758 10.35 14.40 36.00 - 0.49
Lid
. Total - 1043.40




24.
a)

25.

Bl

c)

bl

b}

After conversion of Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) membership rights into trading rights of
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSEL) and shares of BSEL, the Company continues to l:arr_\r
trading rights at historic cost and shares at face value. However this accounting treatment is
not in accordance with the Opinion given by Expert Advisory Eummitteg (EAC) of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), EAC recommends that accounting
standard does not envisage historical cost based accounting treatment in case of
transactions involving exchange of assets. (Refer Note 8).

During the year 2014-15, the company had received 15000 Non-convertible Debentures
from NTPC Ltd towards deemed dividend on equity shares held by the company on 1:1 ratio.
The face value of the debenture is Rs. 12.50. Accordingly company had recognized the
debentures in the books by crediting dividend account. (Refer Note 8).

The Company has paid Larsen & Tubro Ltd an amount of Rs. 15.70 lakhs as an additional
deposit in respect of property tax for the premises of Bhaktawar Tower, which was occupied
by the company. The demand was raised by Bhrihan Mumbai Corporation for enhanced
property tax on Larsen & Tubro Ltd, who has taken the matter before the Bombay High
Court. Pending disposal of the case amount paid towards Company's share of tax deposited
in Court has not been recognised in profit & loss account and shown as deposit under Long
Term Loans and Advances (Non-Current). (Refer Note 10}

Initial margin placed with the exchanges towards capital in the form of cash Rs.147.59 lakhs
(P.Y. Rs. 147.59 lakhs). (Refer Note 10).

The company during the financial year 2012-13 acquired 12300 fully paid Equity Shares of Rs
10 each in the IPO of Thejo Engineering Ltd at Rs 402/- per share amounting to Rs 49.44
lakhs in the Market Maker portion where IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd agreed to act as
Market Maker for a period of three years from the date of listing of the shares. Further
bonus shares on above totalling to 12300 were received during 2013-14. Thus 24600 shares
have been treated as non-current investment. As market maker to the issue, Shares
acquired from the market, outstanding as on 31.03.2016 including 86100 Bonus Shares
received on 14.09.2013 is 177600 equity shares (P.Y 201000 equity shares) amounting to Rs
342 03 lakhs (P.¥Y 387.11 lakhs) has been treated as Current Investments, The market value
of these shares as on 31.03.2016 amounts to Rs 340.99 lakhs (P.Y Rs. 391.95 lakhs). (Refer
MNote 8 & Note 11 of Notes to Accounts and Note 1 (f.1) of Significant Accounting Policies).

The company during the financial year 2013-14 acquired 301000 fully paid Equity Shares of
Rs 10 each in the IPO of Opal Luxury Time Products Ltd at Rs 130/- per share amounting to
Rs 391.30 lakhs in the Market Maker portion where IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd agreed
to act as Market Maker for a period of three years from the date of listing of the shares. This
has been treated as long term investment and accordingly classified under Non-Current
investments. Further, as market maker to the issue, Shares acquired from the market,
outstanding as on 31.03.2016 is 120000 equity shares (PY 65000 equity shares) amounting
to 128.44 lakhs [PY Rs 74.69 lakhs) has been treated as Current Investments. The market
value of these shares as on 31.03.2016 amounts to Rs 115.08 lakhs (P.Y Rs. 74.42 lakhs).
(Refer Note 8 & MNote 11 of Notes to Accounts and Note 1 (f.1) of Significant Acfounting
Policies). - 2

S




26.

a) Statutory dues under other Current liabilities include an amount Rs. 3.97 lakhs being service
tax liability on bills raised before July 01, 2011. The amount is outstanding in the books as
the amount is payable only on receipt of payment from the service receiver as per prevailing
point of taxation under service tax rules of that respective year. (Refer Note 5).

b) Pending receipt order giving effect to Appellate Decisions in favour of the Company for
earlier assessment years, effect of adjustments/reversals if any, in respect of Income Tax
provision of those years has not been reflected during the year. (Refer Note 14)

27. Employees Benefit:

a. Defined Contribution Plans:

Amaunt recognised and included for Contribution to Provident Fund in Note 18 "Contribution
to Provident and other funds” of Profit and Loss Account is Rs. 42.50 lakhs (Previous year Rs.

50.48 lakhs)

b. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five
years or more of service gets a graluity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for

each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 10,00,000.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the
profit and loss account and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet.

Profit and Loss account
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)
March 31, March 31, Manch 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakds
Current service cost 18.28 18.17 21.40 15.98 29.67
Interest cost on benefit
obligation 7.55 7.65 6:49 4.67 3.95
Expected return on plan
Fetats (65.99) {7.36) | {7.12) (5.94) (5.04)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss
recognised in the year 0% 042 KE2+b) L il
Past service cost - - - = .
Net benefit expense 18.10 18.04 8.16 21.85 4.81
Actual return on plan assets | 7.24 6.65 | 6.29 5.12 | 5.54
Balance sheet
Details of Provision for gratuity
viarch 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Rs in lakds Rsin lakhs Rs in bikhs Rs in kakhs s in baidhs
Defined benefit obligation {105.65) (94.58) 82.36 81.18 | 58.34
Fair value of plan assets 97.13 87.64 84.61 8187 | 69.10
Difference (8.52) (6.94) 2.25 0.69 10.76
| Less: Unrecognised past ) _ ] )
. service Cost
Pian asset / (liability) (8.52) (6.94) 2.25




Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

| March3l, | March3l, | March3l, | Marh3l, = Marh3l,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakds Rs in ks Rs in laldws
abligation
Interest cost 71.55 7.65 6.49 4.67 3.95
Current service cost 18.28 18.17 21.40 15.98 29.67
Benefits pald {14.27) (12.47) {13.27) (4.13) {1.45)
Actuarial {gains] / losses.an (0.49) (1.13) (13.44) 6.31 (23.26)
obligation
SOUOE Sats peneit 105.65 94.58 82.36 81.18 58.34
obligation
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 | 2015 2014 213 2012
Rsinlakhs Rsin ks Rsin kakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in kakhs
Opening fair value of plan '
akbuts B76a 84.61 81.87 69.10 63.00
| Expected return 6.99 7.36 7.12 5.94 5.04
| Cantributions by employer 16.52 8 84 9.72 11.78 2.01
Benefits paid ! (14.27) (12.47) (13.27) (4.13) (1.45)
Actuarial gains [ llosses| 0.25 (0.70) {D.83) (0.82) 0.50
Closing fair value of plan
sasats 97.13 87.64 B4.61 81.87 69.10

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are

as follows:
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 012
% % % % %
Investments with insurer 100 100 100 100 100

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans

are shown below:
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 = March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
% Y b % %
Discount rate 7.80 7.98 9.29 B.00 B.00
Expected rate of return on 7.80 7.98 B.70 8.70 B.00
Plan assels
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

In the absence of detailed Information regarding Plan Assets which is funded with Life
Insurance Corporation of India, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the
percentage or amount for each category to the total fair value of plan assets has not been

disclosed.

The details of experience adjustments arising on account of plan assets and plan liabilities as
required by paragraph 120(n|{ii} of AS 15 (Revised) on “Employee Benefits” are not reaglly

available in the valuation statement received from LIC and hence, are not furnished.

Note 18)




¢. The Company has provided shortfall in plan assets in gratuity and leave encashment funds
with projected benefit obligations as per actuarial valuation results as on 31.03.2016 in the
books by debiting the statement of profit and loss amounting to Rs. 1.58 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 6.94
lakhs and Rs. 7.68 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 14,99 lakhs) respectively.

28, Operating Leases
Office premises are taken on operating lease. There are no restrictions imposed by lease
agreements and all lease agreements are cancellable in nature on short term notice.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

_ As at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Lease payments for the year 569.90 563.19
Contingent rent recognized in Profit & Loss Account - -

The above includes payment made to IDBI Bank Ltd (Holding Company) amounting to Rs.
538.81 lacs (P.Y.Rs. 538.81 lacs} towards Rent for Corporate Office ( 3rd floor, Mafatlal Centre)
far which no formal lease agreement is executed. The Company s in the process of finalising
the agreement for operating lease, (Refer Note 20 — Administrative Expenses)

29 Earnings per Share (EPS) - The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic
Earnings per Share

Year ended Year ended
| March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
| Profit attributable to the Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Lakhs) (A} | 928 1,150
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares (8) '
| - No. of shares at the beginning of the period r 12,81,00,000 | 12,81.00,000
| - No. of shares issued during the period I - - |
| - Total No. of shares outstanding at the period 12,81,00,000 | 12,81,00,000
- Nominai value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10 10
- Paid up value of the equity share (Rs.) 10 10
Weighted average no, of shares 12,81,00,000 | 12.81,00,000
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (A/B) 0.72 0.89
Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 0.72 0.89 |
Other Notes

30.  Related Party Transactions:
(Disclosure required under AS 18)
I List of related parties:

A. Related Party where control exists
IDBI Bank Ltd. - Holding Company
IDBI Intech Limited - Fellow Subsidiary
IDBI Asset Management Ltd - Associate
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited - Fellow Subsidiary

B Other Related Parties
Enterprises under common control of the Holding Company
IDBI Federal Life Insurance Co Ltd

C.  Key Management Personnel -
D. C. Jain, Managing Director & CEO till August 31, 2015
Nagaraj Garla, Managing Director & CEO from October 23, 2015
V. Gopinath, Chief Financial Officer
Christina D'souza, Company Secretary




Il, Transactions with Related Parties carried out in the Ordinary course of business and
balance outstanding at the end:

Rs. In lacs
Name of Nature of Transaction During the year OQutstanding as at
Related Party 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
|08 Bank Ltd Interest received 516.97 625.01 157.16 186.40
Brokerage earned 41.25 12093 - -
Rent Received 26.40 26.40
Mobilisation fees - - 143.04 14304
Advisory Fees received 108.50 27.00 139.84 66.05
Rent paid 546.31 546.31 0.32 2.87
Electricity Charges paid 1.07 1.07 - 0.29
Professional Charges paid 22.00 - . -
Brokerage Paid 111.71 118.81 219.11 11B.B4
Medical Expns Reimb. 1.86 3.45 - -
Sitting Fees 4.55 0.80 .
Staff on deputation (in ICMS Rolls) 17.48 28.80 - 2.39
| Staff on deputation (in IDBI Rolls) 21108 276.86 80.05 80.05
Bank Balances - - | 32783.04 2311.17
Fixed Deposit 4955.00 6380.00
. Share Capital held by IDBI Bank - 12810.00 | 12810.00
ICBI Intech Ltd | Professional Charges 238.60 239.14 - -
Manpower Hire Charges 0.00 0.06 3 -
1DBI Brokerage earned 10.51 3.13 - -
Trusteeship Brokerage Paid 0.08 142 - .
Services Lid
IDB! Federal Brokerage earned 40.01 42.11 -
Life insurance
Co. Ltd
IDBI Asset Commission earned 1.86 1.48 - -
Management Miscellaneous Income 0.71 = - -
Ltid Transfer of Fixed Asset - - 1.26 1.26
| Investment in Equity Share Capital * - 2666.00 6666.00 6666.00
Managerial Remuneration to MDECEQ (includes 25.81 28.38 - -
Remunaration pay, allowances and reimbursements)
Pension scheme contribution 0.62 0.70 -
Perquisites & benefits 0.00 0.17 -

* During the year, the company invested nil (P.Y. 2,66,60,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each at par
amounting to Rs.nil (P.Y. Rs. 26.66 crores ) in IDBI Asset Management Ltd a subsidiary of 1DB! Bank

Ltd. The total holding of the company as on 31.03.2016is 33.33 % (P.Y. 33.33 %). (Refer Note §

31 Contingent Liabilities and commitments ( to the extent not provided for)
i} Other items for which the Company is contingently liable-

1. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt — Rs, 79.04 lakhs (PY Rs.

‘rq'!"'"."

49.62 lakhs) including interest @ 18% amounting to Rs. 28.12 lakhs (P ¥ Rs. 21.30

lakhs).

A demand notice dated 27.01.2015 was received raising a demand for payment of
income tax of Rs. 611.79 lakhs for the Asst. Year 2012-13. The notice has been
contested by the company before the appropriate authorities. The Company has also




been advised by its legal counsel that the tax demand against the company is
untenable and likelihood of demand being upheld is low, Accordingly no provision in
respect thereof has been made.

3. A demand notice dated 21.03.2016 was received raising a demand for payment of
income tax of Rs. 20.16 lakhs for the Asst. Year 2013-14. The notice has been
contested by the company before the appropriate authorities. The Company has also
been advised by its legal counsel that the tax demand against the company is
untenable and likelihood of demand being upheld Is low. Accordingly no provision in
respect thereof has been made.

4. SEBI vide order dated November 28, 2014 has imposed a penalty of Rs. 100 lakhs
jointly and severally to be paid by all the 6 Merchant Bankers including IDBI Capital
Market Services Ltd who acted as Book Running Lead Managers (BRLMs) in one of
the IPOs which came out in December 2012. All 6 Merchant Bankers have jointly
appealed before Securities and Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the above order.
Pending disposal of the appeal, amount of Rs 16.67 lakhs (the proportionate
amount) has not been recognized.

5. A show cause notice has been issued by the Service Tax Dept on 07.05.2015 citing
non compliance of provisions of Rule 6(3) and Rule 6({38) of Cenvat Credit Rules 2004
and asked the company to remit Rs. 159.56 lakhs along with interest though IDBI
Capital do not fall within the meaning of a banking company and financial institution
including a non-banking company as mentioned in Rule 6(38) of Cenvat Credit Rules
2004. The matter is pending before Principal Commissioner of Service Tax. The
Company has also been advised by its counsel that the service tax demand against
the company is untenable and likelihood of demand being upheld is low.
Accordingly no provision in respect thereof has been made.,

i) Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for: Rs. Nil lakhs (PY Rs 55.33 lakhs lakhs).

i} An amount of Rs.17.10 lakhs has not been recognized in respect of a project committed
under Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) activity by the company during the financial
year 2015-16 as the execution of the project will be completed only during the financial
year 2016-17.

32.  Earnings in Foreign Currency on account of Advisory services Rs 4.31 lakhs (P.Y. - Rs, 3.73
lakhs) and Expenditure in Foreign currency on account of Travelling Rs. 3.85 lakhs (P.Y. - Rs.
5.12 lakhs).

i3, Dividend income includes dividend on non-current investment amounting to Rs 18.64 lakhs
(PY Rs. 11.71 lakhs) and current investments Rs 6.44 lakhs (PY Rs 7.10 lakhs). Interest income
includes interest on non-current investments amounting to Rs. 36.05 lakhs (PY Rs. 76.30

lakhs).
34, Segment Reporting {Disclosure required under AS 17)

Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenditure have been allocated to the respective seg
the extent practicable for the purpose of segment reporting.
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35 The additional Information pursuant to Schedule |Il to the Companies Act, 2013 are either
Nil or Not Applicable.

36. Previous year figures have been grouped, regrouped, arranged and rearranged wherever
necessary and possible.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 36
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For A Sachdev & Co

= o
Chartered Accountants R \%}ﬂ_ﬁ?ﬁi—h\_

Firm Registration No: 001307C

Kishor Kharat Nagaraj Garia
Chairman Managing Director & CEQ
* . DIN: 07266945 DIN: DBSE3880
Mawic Afrsr \ ~
. — ¥ — M‘J
Manish Agarwal @5‘“—“—"{_ ‘&
Partner — : Christina D'souza V. Gopinath
M. No. 078628 Company-Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 April 2016
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO

THE MEMBERS OF

IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
MUMBAI

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanving consolidated financial statements of IDBI Capital Market
Services Limited (the Company), and 1ts one associate which comprises of the Consohidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Consohdated Statememt of Profit and Loss and
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Compames Act. 2013 (hereinafter referred 1o as “the
Act”) that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position. consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Company including its Associate in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules. 2014, The
respective Board of Directors of the company and of its Associate are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe guarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregulanties ; the selection
and apphication of appropriate accounting policies ; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design. implementation and maintenance of adeguate intemnal
financial controls | that were operating effectively for ensunng the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant 1o the preparaton and presentation of the financial statements thal give
a true and fair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consohdated financial statements by the
Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

AUDITORS” RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consohdated financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken o account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 1o be included i the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audiung specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ermor,

In making those nsk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial contral relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting 1n place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the company’s director. as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained and audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred 10 in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opmmion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informauon and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
80 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting prnnciples generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the C ompany and its Associate as at 31"
March 2016, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the vear ended on
that date.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s share of net profit of Rs 116 Lacs for
the year ended 31" March 2016 as considered in the financial statements . in respect of one
associate, whose financial statements / financial information have not been audited by us These
financial statements’ financial information have been sudited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished 1o us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements. in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our repont
in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the AcCL, 1n so far as ot relates to the afore sad
associate, is based solely on the reponts of the other auditors,
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other Legal and Re_gulalary
Requirements below, 1s not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements ' financial

information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies ( Auditor’s Report) Order. 2016 “the Order™). issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on
the comments in the auditor’s report of the Company and its associate company, we give in
the Annexure “A’. a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose ol our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as 1t appears
from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the consohidated Cash Flow Statemeni dealt wath by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of the consohdated financial
statements.

In our opinion. the aforesmd Consohdated Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the rule 7 of
the Compames (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the wntten representations received from the directors of the company
as on March 31, 2016, taken on record by the Board ol Directors, and reports of the
statutory auditors ol 1ts associate company, non¢ of the directors ol the company and
its associate company s disqualified as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as a
director in terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the Act.

With respect 10 the other matters 10 be included in the auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditor’s) Rule 2014, in our opimion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:
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1} The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litngation on
the consolidated fnancial posihon of the Company and 1ts associate in s
financial statement (Refer Note No. 31 to the Financial Statements)

2) The Company and its associate did not have any long term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any matenal foresceable losses.

3) There were no amounts which were required to be translerred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its associate

For A. Sachdev & Co.
aartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No - 078628

Mumba
Apnl 25, 2016
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ANNEXEURE 'A" REFERRED TO IN THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LTD.

Qur reporting on the Order includes an associate company incorporated in India, to which the Order
15 applicable, which has been audited by other auditors and our repont in respect of this associate is
based solely on the report of the other auditor, to the extent considered applicable for reporting
under the Order 1n the case of the consohdated financial statements

(1}

(a) The Company and its associate have mamntamned proper records showing full particulars
in¢luding quantitative details and sitsatuon of fixed assets.

(b) The Company and its associate does physical venfication at reasonable intervals and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such venfication.

(¢ ) According 1o the mformation and explananons given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the ttle deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the Company.

(1) As the Company and its associate are service compames, they do not have any mventory

(1)

(1v)

Accordingly, the clauses (1) {a) to (1) (¢) of the paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to
the Company.

The company and its associates have not granied any loans, secured or unsecured to
compames, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act. Hence, the clause (1) (a) and (in) (b) of the paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable 1o the Company.

In our opinion and according to the mformaton and explanations given 10 us, the Company
and its associate have complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. with
respect 1o the loans and investments made.

(v} In our opimion, the Company and its associate have not accepted any deposits from the public

or 1ts members

(v1) To the best of our knowledge and explanation given o us by the management. the Central

(Vil)

Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Compamies Act, 2013 for the company and 1ts associate

{a} Undisputed statutory dues including providem fund. employees® state insurance. income
lax, sales-tax, wealth wx, service tax. custom duty, excise duty, value added 1ax. cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropnale
authonities by the company and us associate and there are no undisputed dues

outstanding as on 31st March 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became pavable |




A.SACHDEY & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

G-51, thagun Arcade. Film city Road,
Malad {East), Mumbai - 400 097
W +91 22 28405059

Email: manith@asachdev.com

(b) According to the records of the Company and its associate, there are no dues of Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, value added tax or Cess
which have not been deposited on the account of any dispute except for the following

amounls.
Name of | Nature  of Amount ' Period to  Forum where |
Statute Dues (Rs.) which the | the dispute is |
amount relates  pending |
Income  Tax | Income ftax 45879 Lacs | FY. 2011-12 | CIT(Appeals- |
Act 1961 and Interest | 9). Mumba !
Income Tax | Income lax 20,16 Lacs | F.Y. 2012-13 '- ClT{Appeals- |
Act 1961 and Interest 9}, Mumbai
MVAT Act VAT set off | 2834 Lacs | F.Y. 201 1-12 Jomt Comm.
on purchases Of Sates
denied tax({ Appeals)

(viii) According to the books of account and records of the company and 1ts associate. no amount 15

(1x)

(x)

(Xi)

(x11)

due 10 financial institutions or bank or debenture holders

The Company or its associate did not raise any money by way of imtial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans durning the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order 15 not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented by the

Management and based on our examunation of the books and records of the company. no
matenal fraud on or by the Company and its associate was noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations give 1o us, in view of MCA circular dated 5"
June, 20135, the provisions of managenal remuneration as per provisions of section 197 are not
apphcable to the company or its associate being government companies,

!n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company or
Its associate are not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order 15 not
applicable

(x11) According to the informanon and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company and its associate, transactions with the related parties are in
comphiance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where ever applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards

(x1v) According to the informanon and explanations give 1o us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company or its associate has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures duning the year. '
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records. the Company or its associate has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order 15 not applicable

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company and 115 associate are
not required 1o be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For A. Sachdev & Co.
Charnered Accountants
> FRN - 001307C

r‘ff‘w'* M "fi‘_‘_r 'I
{Mnifﬁ'_;;nrwln

Partner
Membership No.- 078628

Mumbai
Apnl 25, 2016
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Addendum to the Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements of IDBI Capital Market Services
Limited dated April 25,2016

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd.
and its one associate as of 31" March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of the Company and its associate company are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICA! and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

-
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depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company and its one associate company have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one associate company is based on
the corresponding report of the auditors of such company. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this

matter.

For A. Sachdey & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN - 001307C A PN
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July 13,2016



IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LMITED
[CIN: UB5IF0MHIS93GOI075578)

CONSOUDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
As At As At
Noke No. 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
I EQUITY & LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 12,810 12,810
[b) Reserves and Surplus 3 15,067 15,256
171.817 28,066
{2} Current Liabilities
{a) Trade payabies 4 1,459 532
{5} Other current liabilities 5 316 281
{c) Short-term provisions 6 149 1,063
1,924 2.176
TOTAL 29,801 30,242
Il. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(1} {a} Fixed Assets T
(i) Tangible assets 719 589
(i) Intangible assets 224 a6
{iil) Capital work-in-progress 18 240
{iv]) Intangible assets under development - 207
{b) Non-current Investments B 5,226 5,015
{c) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 166 423
(d) Long-term loand and advances 10 198 198
6,551 6,718
{2) Current Assets
(a) Current investmenis 11 456 462
(b} Trade receivables 12 B.,511 B.416
[c) Casn and Bank balances 13 11,829 13,537
id) Short-term lpans and advances 14 2,284 a09
[e] Other current assets 15 170 200
23,250 13,524
TOTAL 29,801 30,242
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial 1to37
Statemnents
Notes referred to above form an Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For A Sachdev & Co p/’-ﬂﬁ
s ‘czm{m@%
Firm Registration No: 001307C
Kishor Kharat Nagaraj Garla
r\_ w .’Jr‘“. < Chalrman Managing Director & CEO
i DIN: D7266945 DIN: DE983880
Manish l;arwil /
Partner | &Gu ? ML;-—
M. No. 078628 Christi ra V. Gopinath
Company Setretary Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date : 25 April 2016




D8I CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED

[CIN: UBSS90MMH1993GOI075578)
CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
Note No For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
' 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
L Revenue from D-Flr.ﬂ.ﬂ.ﬂ; 16 5792 7022
I, Other Income 17 1.002 1,564
. |Total Revenue (I + N} 6,794 8,586
V. Expenses
Employee Benefits Expense 18 1,938 2,086
Operating Expenses 19 1,258 1.278
Administrative Expenses 20 1,064 1,124
Loss on Sale of Assets (0} Q
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses |Refer Note 7] 189 168
Provision for Graturty and Leave Encashment (Reter Note 27 (c]) 9 2
Provision for Doubtful Debts (Refer Note 12 (617) 449
Praovision for Long Term investments (Refer Note 23 (al) - 1,043
Bad Debts Written Off 1528 419
Total Expenses 5.369 6,589
V. Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax [11-1V) 1,425 1,997
Vi. |Exceptional ltems [Refer Note 7 & Note 12) - (244)
Vil.  |Profit Before Tax (V -VI) 1,425 1,241
Vill. |Tax Expense
[1) Current Tax 240 1,209
(2) Deferred Tax [Refer Note 9.8 Note 12| 157 {118}
IX. |Profit Afver Tax 928 1,150
. Share of Profif|Loss) of Associates 116 (691)
Xl |Profit/{Loss) After Tax and Share of Profit/|Loss} of Associates 1,044 459
e ——
Xil. |Earnings per equity share [Nominal value per share Rs. 10 each]
(1} Basic 29 0.81 03s
(2) Diluted 0.81 0.35
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 1to37

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For A Sachdev & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: D01307C

Partner
M. No. 07B628

Place: Mumbai
Date : 25 April 2016
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For and on behalf of the Board
h‘ 3 L‘i..‘-h

ishor Kharat Nagaraj Garla
Chairman Managing Director & CEOQ
DIN: 07266945 DIN: 06983880

| .
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Christina za Sq V. Gopinath
Company Sgcretary Chief Financial Officer




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
TR USSFSOMH1FIIO00TISTR)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

Ry in Lok |
For TheYear Ended  For TheYear Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Cash Figws from Dperaling ACtivilies
Profit {Loss) for tha penod from continuing operstions{before tax) 1,425 1.997
Adyustments for
Cepreliation 18% 168
Prowision for Gratuity & Leave ancashment 9 id
Provisgn for Doubtiul Detts (617) 443
Providon for Noncurrent investments " 1.043
Bad Cebty written off 1518 415
[Profitl/Loss on saie of Non-Current Investments {12} 159
(Profit/Loss on valuation of Current investments i :
(Profity/Loss on sale of Fised Assetd {0 ¢
Dividend incorme 125} [39)
fntarest Income {517} {773M
Operating Profit before working capital changes 1,991 3245
Agjustiments for working capital
{increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables {1,006} {1,136
(Increase |/ Decrease in Other Current Assets o 151
[Incréate/Decresss In Long Term Loans & Advances ’
(Increasel/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances {974} 2
increaief{Dacreasa) in Short Term Provisions 12 1431
ingreais/|Decredta) in Trade pivables and other ouirent Labilites 652 FELY
Met Change in working capital (1.288) {515)
Diéraect tawes pand (M) {1,008) {1.385]
bet cash flow from Operating Activities (4) i!ﬂ:lt 1242
Cash flow lrom investing Activities
Purchase of Faued Agsety {497) (29}
Capital Advance fof Software & Assels 439 [447)
Procaeds from sale of fasd assty o i
Proceeds from sale of iInvestments 85 3,768
Purchase of investrnents {173} LY
imvesimenisin Asspoatie Company - [2,666)
Frocesds from Maturity of Fixed Deposits 6897 E.950
Deployment in Fiied Deposits {4,955) [T 4B}
Divdend received 15 i
Net cash flow from investing Activities  [B] 1811 H“E
Cash figw from Fingnging Activities
Dividend Paid (.793) iazi
Net cash flow from Financing Activities  |€) |5ﬂ PI“]“
Net incressef{decrease) i canh & cash equivalenty{AsB+C) lﬂ 1 1a3)
Cash and Cash equivalents as a1 April 12015 TE B, 406
Cajh and Cazh equivalents as st March 31,2016 6874 7.1%7
Mate L The sbove cash fow staterment had Been pvepaied by using the
madsect method setout M docounting Standard 3- 'Cash Flow Simtement”
ipecified uncer 1ecticn 133 of the Companies &ot 2003 read with ruie T
af the cormmamet | Acoowts | Rulés FO14
& Cish o Canh Eguitvalenty consist oF cash on hand, bask balanged with banks
Aj pof ouf attached report of even date For and on behall of the Board
For A Sachdev & Co mh
Chartered Accountanis
Flem Registration No: 001307C —
- Nagara) Garla
'\r" -L . - Chatrman Mangging Director & CEO
‘[ ' DiN: 07266945 DIN: 0&5B3I8E0
Manish Agerwal [ f
i mﬁ N Spinath
M. ko, OTB6ZE s V. Gopinath
Company Chiet Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai
Date : 25 April 2016




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LTD

(CIN:

U65990MH1993G0OI1075578)

Nates forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note

|

1. Principles of Consolidation:

The

Consolidated Financial Statements consist of IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd ("the

Company”) and its associate companies (collectively referred to as "the Group"), The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:
e Investment In associates where the Company holds more than 20% of eguity, are

accounted for using equity method as per Accounting Standard 23 — Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements notified by Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006

The Group accounts for its share of post acguisition changes in net assets of associates,
through its Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent such change is
attributable to the associates’ Statement of Profit and Loss and through its reserves for
the balance based on available information.

The financial statements of the associates used in the consolidation are drawn up to the
same reporting date as that of the Company l.e. 315t March, 2016.

Details of associates which are included in the consolidation and the Group’s holdings
therein are as under:

Name of the company Ownership in % directly Country of Incorporation
2015-16 2014-15
IDBI Asset Management Ltd 33.33 3333 india

2. Significant Accounting Policies

a} Accounting Convention

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except In case of assets for which
provision for impairment is made and revaluation is carried oul. The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous
year

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those
estimates, Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised in accordance with the
requirements of the respective accounting standard,




All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedute Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non
current classification of assets and liabilities.

¢) Fixed assets and Depreciation
c1  TANGIBLE ASSETS

Fixed Assets are valued at original cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

c2 Fixed Assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as specified in Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013 on a straight-line method, Assets retired from active use
are fully depreciated. Assets having individual value of less than Rs.5,000, in the year
of acquisition and assets retired from active use are fully depreciated.

c.3  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are measured at cost of acquisition/development and amortised
over their estimated economic life on a straight-line method.

Computer Software - 3 years.
Web Trading Portal = 3 years.
Stock Exchange Membership Card - at 4.75% p.a.

c4 Management estimates the economic value of Bombay Stock Exchange Trading
Rights based on the value in use, The company amaortises it over 21 years unless
there Is evidence that its useful life is shorter.

dl Impairment of Assets:

d.1  The carrying amount of assets, is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
recoverable amount of the assets is estimated.

d.2  An Impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the
greater of the asset’'s net selling price and value in the use, which is determined,
based on the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present values. All
impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account,

d.3 Animpairment loss is reversed if there Is a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount and is recognized in the profit and loss account.

e) Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account under ‘Rent
Rates and Taxes’ on a Straight Line Basis over the lease term.




f)]  Investments and Securities held as stock-in-trade

f1 Investments are classified into non-current and current investments. Securities and
other financial assets acquired and held for earning income by way of dividend and
interest and for the purpose of capital appreciation are classified as non-current
investments and are valued at their cost of acquisition. Decline in their value other
than temporary, if any, is recognized. Current Iinvestments are carried at lower of cost
or market value. Securities acquired in the market making process as market maker
are classified as Current Investments irrespective of the period of holding.

f2 Securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading are
considered as stock-in-trade and regarded as current assets,

Securities held as stock-in-trade category wise are valued at lower of cost or
market/fair value. Cost is derived by following the weighted average method
considering only outright transactions, Market value is determined based on market
quotes for actual trades and where such guotes are not available, fair value is
determined, in the case of debt securities, with reference to yields on securities of
similar maturity and credit standing, and in the case of equities, with reference to the
break-up value as per the last available balance sheet. Each security is valued
individually. The depreciation, If any, for each security is provided and the
appreciation, if any, is ignored.

.3  Premium paid on government securities held as investment is amortized over the
tenor of the instrument.

gl Revenue Recognition

g.1 Total consideration paid or received on purchase or sale, on outright basis, of
coupon-bearing debt securities is identified separately as principal consideration and
accrued interest. Amount paid as accrued interest on purchase, and received on sale,
of such securities is netted and reckoned as expense or income by way of interest.

g.2 Interest on fixed coupon debt securities, held as on the Balance Sheet date, is
accrued for the broken period at the coupon rate. Interest on floating rate securities
is accrued at rates determined as per the terms of the issue.

g.3  Profit on Sale of Investments is recognized on the settiement date. It represents the
excess of Sale / Redemption proceeds over the acquisition cost. Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis. Profit on sale of investments is netted with loss on sale
of Investments,

g4 Devolvement of equity shares in respect of issues underwritten by the company are
treated as investments. Underwriting income on these issues are credited to profit
and loss account and not netted against the value of investments.

g5 Brokerage and commission earned on secondary market operations is recognized on
the basis of trade dates. Brokerage on online portal operations is recognized on the
basis of trade dates. Brokerage and commission in respect of issue marketing and
resource mobilization are accrued to the extent of availability of information.
Depository, Portfolio Management and other fees are accounted for on accrual basis.
Dividend is recognised when the company’s right to receive payment is established
by the balance sheet date. Revenue excludes Service Tax, wherever recovered.
Revenue from issue management, loan syndication and financial advisory services is
recognised as per terms of agreement with the client,




h)
h.1

h.2

h.3

h.4

k)

Transactions in Futures and Options

Initial Margin payable at the time of entering Into futures contract / sale of options is
adjusted against the deposits with the exchanges in the form of fixed deposits, cash
deposits and securities.

Transactions in Future contracts are accounted as Purchase and Sales at the notional
trade value of the contract. The open interest in futures as at the Balance Sheet date
is netted by its notional value.

The difference in the settlement price or exchange closing price of the previous day
and exchange closing price of the subsequent day, paid to or received from the
exchange is treated as Mark to Market Margin. The balance in the Mark to Market
Margin Account represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of
movement in the prices of open interest In futures contracts till the balance sheet
date. Net debit balance in the Mark to Market Margin Account is charged off to
revenue whereas net credit balance is shown under current liabilities.

Premium paid or received on purchase and sale of options and the difference paid or
received on exercise of options is accounted as Purchases or Sales. In case of open
interast in options sold as on the balance sheet date, provision is made for the
amount by which premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date exceeds the
premium received for those options, The excess of premium received over the
premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date is not recognised. Similarly, in case of
options bought, provision is made for the amount by which the premium paid for the
option exceeds the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date and the excess of
premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date over the premium paid is ignored. In
case of multiple open positions, provision is made or excess premiums are ignored
after netting off the balances in buy as well as sell positions.

Interest Rate Swaps

Assets and Liabilities in respect of notional principal amount of Interest Rate Swaps of
the discontinued operations pertaining to Primary Dealership operations are netted.
Gain or loss on Interest Rate Swaps is accounted for on due dates as per the terms of
the contract.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of the transaction. At the year end, monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are reported using the closing rate of exchange. Exchange difference arising
thereon and on realization / payments of foreign exchange are accounted as income or
expenses in the relevant year

Turnover

Purchases and sales of dated government securities, treasury bills and other securities
are disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account, with a view to indicating the turnover of
funds of the company and include only outright transactions. For this purpose, sales
also include redemption proceeds, if any, when these securities are held by the
company till the date of maturity.




J]
.1

1.2

1.3

I.4

.5

0.1

0.2

0.3

Employee benefits

The Company’s contribution on account of retirement benefits in the form of
Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund is charged to revenue. The gratuity and
leave encashment liability of the company are covered under the scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of India and the yearly contribution is paid to LIC.

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged
to the Praofit & Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective
funds are due.

The Company contributes to an approved Group Gratuity Policy with the LIC of India,
Gratuity liability are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation as per AS 15 (Revised) made at the end of each financial year
based on the projected unit credit method,

The Company contributes to the Group Leave Encashment Policy with the LIC of
India. Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the profit and loss account and are
not deferred.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with
Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings per Share. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the
net profit or loss for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the
results are anti-dilutive.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting
standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements and presents the cash flows by operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company.

Cash and Cash equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on
hand and demand deposits with banks.

Taxation

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid/ recovered from the tax
autharities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act,

The tax effect of the timing differences that result between taxable income and
accounting income and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods
are recorded as a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability. Deferred tax assets and
habilities are recognized for future tax conseguences attributable to timing
differences. They are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
and tax regulations as at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient taxable income will be available in future, against
which the deferred tax assets can be realized; however where there is unabsorbes
depreciation and carried forward losses, deferred tax assets is created only if th > L

virtual certainty of realization of assets. o




o4

0.5

p)
p.1

p.2

p.3

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be realized,

Tax credit is recognized in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT] as per the
provisions of Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 based on convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax within the statutory time
frame and is reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when there Is a present obligation as a result of past event
It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made,
Contingent Assets are not recognized.

Bad and doubtful assets are Identified after carrying out a case by case raview of all
outstanding debts. Provisions are made on doubtful debts on management’s
evaluation of their realisability, In case the chances of recovery do not exist in any of
the doubtful debts, the same shall be written off.




IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd.
{CIN: UBSF90MHIF93GOWTSSTE]
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

Note 2
SHARE CAPITAL
{Rs in lakhs)
¢ aoital As at 31.03.2016 As at 31.03.2015%

Hhare Number Amount Number Amopunt
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000 20,000 200,000,000 20,000
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 11,810
Subscribed & Paid up
Eguity Shares of As, 10 each fully Paid up 118,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810

Total 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810
Note 2(a)
Reconciliation of Numbér of Shares

(Rs in lakhs}
Equity Shares 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares gutstanding at the beginning of the year 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810
Shares lssusd duﬂ the year . - . .
Shares bought back during the year ‘ - - .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810

MNote 2(b)
Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote

per share.

in the event of iquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recieve remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the share holders,

Note 2{c)
Out of Equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its Holding company are as follows:
(Rs in lakhs)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
E Shares
SR Number Amount Number Amount
IDBI Bank Ltd (Holding Company| along with its
NOMINEes 128,100,000 12,810 128,100,000 12,810
Note 2(d)
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
1 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each ful
e Number % of holding Number % of holding
IDBI Bank Ltd (Holding Company) along with its
nominees 128,100,000 100% 128,100,000 100%

Note 2{&)

Aggregate number of equity shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date:

31.03.2016

31.03.2015

31.03.2013

31_uﬁgu13

31.03.2012

Equity Shares bought back by the company




NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

D8I CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN: UBSSB0MH 1993G0I075578)

(Rs in lakhs)
As At As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015%
Note 3
Reserves and Surplus
a) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 7,190 7,190
Add: Current Year Transfer . 8
Less: Written Back in Current Year n ~
Closing Balance 7,180 1,130
b) General Reserve
Opening Balance 11,250 11,086
Less: Provision for Depreciation of earlier years (net of deferred tax)* - 36
Add: Current Year Transfer a 200
Less: Wrritten Back In Current Year = =
Closing Balance 11,250 11,250
*Refer Note 7 & Note 32
c) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,184) (2,517)
Net Profit For the current year 1,044 459
(+] Transfer from Reserves
Less: Appropriations
Interim Dividend {1,025) -
Tax on Interim Dividend {208) .
Proposed Dividend . (7€9)
Tax on Proposed Dividend - [157)
Transfar to Reserves - (200)
Balance at the end of the year {3,373} {3,184)
TOTAL 15,067 15,256
Note 4
Trade Payables®
a] Trade Payables 316 117
b) Others - Client’s settlement dues 1,143 195
TOTAL 1,459 532
*Refer Note 11 |information iequired under MSMED Act 2006)
Note 5
Other Current Liabilities
2} Sundry Depasits 85 151
bl Margin Money Deposits 37 370
¢j Statutory Dues * 54 26
d) Others 140 134
TOTAL 316 581
*Refer Nobe 26 |a)
Note 6
Short Term Provislons
a] Provision for employees benefit 144 132
b) Other Provisions 5 5
¢} Praposed Dhvidend . 769
d) Tax on Proposed Dividend . 157
TOTAL 149 1,063
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108! CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
[N LGS 990 MM | FIG0M TINTE]
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(R i Lakhs)
K AT R i
Fate li"lll_l_ Ri. Quantity 31.03.2016 _ Quantity 31.03.2015 |
MNate &
Nen-Current Investments’
Trade invesiments - Long Term
Investment in Eguity Inwtrarments
Eguity Shares - Unguoted, Fully paid up
The Bembay Stock Exchangs Ltd’ 1 10694 [V 70,694 0
Equity Shares - Quoted. Fully pald up
Abzan Offanore Lud 2 B0 13 OO ot
[t et lais Brevanioe poewy Bran Sernoorety dirminutios imestue Ba MR 2T
My 31 fedad
Baja| Hindustan Sugar Ltg 1 iB.758 10 18,758 10
ke o3y iy provealon. ciber e temporary dirmrmitioe moeegs By HI01E
R 350 bemil
DLF Lrd 4 17,140 -1 17140 96
L St bees priuind Shad TRER BRSOy (hrreaumion [ wabhes R MW (1013
Py %l lar)
Gokdman Sachs Mutual Fund Nifty Bees' 10 0.08 0 009 0
ngia Cormpnt L4 10 38,815 Té A B ]
AT cot bl Sroviems sthet TREn termEdeaty ErmmnJton i veles B 2018
By 1% e
Mitcon Consult@ncy & [ngineering Services Lid i o . 40.000 25
hHPC L ia 500, 000 171 506, 200 |
NTPL L1 10 15,000 30 15,000 in
Opal Lukory Time Products Lid 10 F01.000 391 301.000 91
Pun| Lioyd L1a 2 4500 i 4,500 Fi
[Af siapr beis prosithns atee) Than temparary fmemuton bnoaeliss R sl (2008
By 18 ol
Relance Communication Lid £ 2000 7 2.000 7
1AL cowt fegn provisph otk Thsr empoiaTy imsensbon ay vy By MW (2015
R W bl
Rekence nfrastrcture Lid 10 B 000 B0 6, D00 B0
[Az cost braa BrovieE= athe Lar temeecary Brre b i valos Ba bd {015
By 43 sl
Raliance mdustrad L1d 19 16,920 201 16,520 201
Theo Enginsering Lig b 13} il GO0 S0 24,600 4l
VTN Industries Lid 10 L.990.850 Is 2,993 50 239
(A comf fess pruviense sk g termpor Ty Heretstoe o vabeon B Sl 2008
Wy JTHA hags|
Equity Index Funds -Quoted’, Fully paid up
N My bt Fund - Direct Man - Growth 10 828,350 120
investrments in debentures or bonds
Quoted, Fully paid up
GOl - T 18% G0 I02 3 1,000,000 =0 500 S0 L00
HTPL Limited 4054 B 40 NCD I5AAZE FYRSIZE 1150 15,000 F | 15.000 !
(Ratws bioze 24 f2i)
trvvestrment in Associate Company
Unguoted, Fully paid up
I8l Asser Management Ltd 10 66.660,000 3213 66660000 31
[t ol olding 0. B3 30% (P 7, 53 59N of toted paid uB BRI
camtai
| Buiwr Pabeg B0
Total FEH 5,05
3 Ajggregste value of guoted invertments
Cofn 4, 882
Mprce: Yalse IE
b Aggregate value of unguoted invertments
Cont 1,238
© Aggregate providion for diminution in vaiue of investments !E
d  Eguiy Actounied Assocoiatsy
{1} Cost of Investimeit 5,665
{il] Share of post acquisition profik J [ladg) |3,428)
3I 138
#  Detiils of Equily accounted assoicates as followy oy i gy
Aviwmubatid fraft Carmymg asment af
Coiged Coad ot CosnibuelB /| Capriad ' (o) - WRITRTL B @R
P i PR H HEI'H “#H FLDM 20T ko poik
DB Adset Management Lid 6666 |3,426) 3,258
L Adl imvesTmEnTs are STATED 31 o041 / COS1 LS JimUnieon i vlie
olhey than temporany
£ For Mufubl Fundy, Net Asiet Value W takien gs Market Value
3. dumount = below the roundmg off norms sdopted by the company
el Soaw 11 Sote 25 B Sote ¥l For orfes cedadi)




NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016

IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(CiN: UBSHS0MMH 1 993GOI0TS5TE)

[Rs in lakhs)
As At As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 9
Deferred tax
Deferred Tax Liability
On account of timing differences - Depreciation 132 93
TOTAL 132 93
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Doubtful debts 277 431
Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment 11 T
Dapreciation on expired assets 4 16
inadmissable expenses u/s 438 of 1T Act & Fi
TOTAL 298 316
Net Deferred Tax (Assets) 166 423
Note 10
Long Term Loans and Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits® 198 198
TOTAL 198 198

®indiluded deposiy feldroed in Mote 14




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN: UB5990MM1993GOI0T5578)
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2016
(Rs in lakhs)
As At As At
Face Value Rs. Quantity 31.03.2016 Quantity 31.03.2015

Note 11

Current Investments
Trade Investments - Short Term
Invastment In Equity Instruments

[ A% lowear of costar markiet walue)

Quoted, Fully paid up

Thejo Engineering Ltd 10 177,600 341 201,000 387
[Refer Mote 25)
Opal Luxury Time Products Ltd 10 120,000 115 65,000 75
{Heter Note 15)

Tozal 456 462

Aggregate value of quoted investments
Lost
Market Value

470 462
456 466




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED

(CHN: UBSTH0MMH193G0I075578)
NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
As AL As At
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 12
Trade Recelvables®
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Outstanding for period exceeding six months 5,123 5,677
Other Debts 2589 7712 24484 811
|Unsecured, Considered doubtful)
Ourstanding for pariod exceeding six months 1,594 1,712
Other Debts b 2
Less: Provisions for Doubtful Debts (801) 799 {1.419) 295
TOTAL 8,511 8,416
*Trade Réceabled ife subject 1o confirmations
Note 13
Cash & Bank Balances
Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash on hand 1 2
Balances with banks 33713 3,374 2,455 2,457
Current Investments (Highly Liquid)
1081 Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct 3,500 4,700
Units CY 215,781 259 (P.Y. 313,545 .683)
Other Bank Balances
Bank Fixed Deposits - more than 12 months
- Pledged with Stock Exchanges for margin 4,575 4,575
- pthers 380 4,955 1,805 6,380
TOTAL 11,829 13,537
Note 14
Short Term Loans & Advances
|Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advance Recoveérable in cash or kind
Amount recoverable from Related Parties 1 4
Sundry Deposits 26 26
Others
Advance to S5arvice Providers 24 7
Dthers 713 764 159 196
Advance Tax & Tax Deducted at Source (net of provisions)® 1,520 713
TOTAL 2,284 209
* Rofar Note 26 (b}
Note 15
Other Current Assets
Accruad interest on Fixed Deposits 157 187
Accrued Interest on GOI Securities 13 13
TOTAL 170 200




D8I CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED

[CIN: UESS90MM1993G007557H)

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2016

(Rs in lakhs)
For TheYear Ended For TheYear Ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 16
Revenue From Operations
Brokerage, Commission & Fees 5.722 6.951
Partfolio Management Services 16 15
income from Depository Services 54 56
TOTAL 5,792 1.022
Note 17
Other Income
Dividend Income 25 19
income from Mutual fund redemptions 385 E44
Profit on Sale of Investmenty 12 55
Loss on Valuation of Current Investments (11) -
Other Non-operating Income
Interest Recelved on Bonds/Fixed Deposits 517 519
Interest / Discount on G-sec [/ Treasury Bills 36 £}
Interest Recelved on income Tax Refund - 256
Miscellaneous Income 38 31
TOTAL 1,002 1.564
Note 18
Employee Benfits Expense®
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 1,792 1,941
Contribution 1o Provident and other funds 115 106
Other benefity i1 39
TOTAL 1,938 2,085
*Discioiuie requlred by &5 15 on Employes benefity- Refer Mote 37
Note 19
Operating Expenses
Brokerage Paid 261 m
Cperating Charges 152 155
Computer Maintenance Expenses 155 145
Marketing Expenses 14 13
Professional Charges 327 177
Franking/Stamp Expenses BB ]
Manpower Hire Charges 282 272
Loss on Error Trade 1 7
TOTAL 1,258 1,178
Note 20
Administrative Expenses
Rent (Refer Wote 28] 570 568
Electricty Charges 78 77
Rates & taxes 14 Y|
Insurance 6 B
Repairs & Maintenance 8 59
Travelling & conveyance g5 g1
CommuniCation Expenses 117 136
Printing & Stationery 32 31
Sitting fees to directors 10 4
Contribution towards C5R 52 6%
Auditors Remuneration
AUdit Fees - [
Tan Audit Fees 1 i
Others . b
Prior Period Items {Net) [ 5
Miscellaneous expenses 17 35
TOTAL 1,064 1,124




IDBI CAPITAL MARKET SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN: UBSO90MH1993GOI0T5578)
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

21,

22,

23

The Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regarding their status under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any,
relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together with interest paid/ payable as required
under the said act have not been given. (Refer Note 4)

The company had revised its policy for providing depreciation on fixed assets effective from
April 1, 2014, The company had changed the estimated useful life of fixed assets in line with
the recommended useful life as per Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Consequently, an amount of Rs 36.69 lacs (net of deferred tax of Rs. 15.71 lakhs) had been
charged to the opening balance of General Reserves in respect of assets whose useful
remaining life is Nil as at April 1, 2014. In respect of remaining tangible assets, the Company
had with retrospective effect changed its methed of providing depreciation from the "Written
Down Value® method, at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 to
‘Straight Line" method, over their estimated useful life as specified in Schedule Il to Companies
Act 2013, Accordingly, company had recognised an amount of Rs 243.86 lakhs in Statement of
Profit & Loss being additional depreciation charged in the earlier years which has been shown
as an ‘Exceptional item’ in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2015. This
had resulted in higher depreciation charge for the year ended 31.03,2015 to the extent of Rs.
£8.12 lakhs and the profit is lower to this extent. (Refer Note 7)

a) Following Non-Current investments are carried at cost. The management estimates the

diminution in the value other than temporary in respect of these non-current investments.
Accordingly a provision for diminution in the value amounting to Rs. Nil lakhs (P.Y. Rs.
1043.40 lakhs) has been created by charge to the statement of profit and loss during the
year. (Refer Note 8)

Cont Market Carrying _P{uuismn for
o value per cost per Diminution In the
Scrip Name Qty 3103 16 i sh::e val: : n:pu:; ::an
Rs lakhs Rs R¢ lakhs
2015-16 2014-15
VTX Industries Ltd 2992850 2952.85 1.50 100 918.00
Aban Offshore Ltd 800 29.13 176,70 3640.57 10.B1
DLF Ltd 17140 150.43 11460 877.67 54.40
india Cements Ltd 38825 101.40 86.20 261.17 24.63
Reliance 2000 11.20 50.00 560.00 403
Communications Ltd
Refiance B000 111.31 533.60 1855.21 31.04
Infrastructure Ltd
Bajaj Hindustan Sugar 28758 10.35 14.40 36,00 0.49
 Ltd
Total | = 1043.40




24.

45,

b) After conversion of Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) membership rights into trading rights of

bi

b)

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSEL) and shares of BSEL, the Company continues to carry
trading rights at historic cost and shares at face value, However this accounting treatment is
not in accordance with the Opinion given by Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). EAC recommends that accounting
standard does not envisage historical cost based accounting treatment in case of

transactions involving exchange of assets. (Refer Note 8).

During the year 2014-15, the company had received 15000 Non-convertible Debentures
from NTPC Ltd towards deemed dividend on equity shares held by the company on 1:1 ratio.
The face value of the debenture is Rs. 12.50. Accordingly company had recognized the
debentures in the books by crediting dividend account. (Refer Note 8).

The Company has paid Larsen & Tubro Ltd an amount of Rs. 15.70 lakhs as an additional
deposit in respect of property tax for the premises of Bhaktawar Tower, which was occupied
by the company. The demand was raised by Bhrihan Mumbai Corporation for enhanced
property tax on Larsen & Tubro Ltd, who has taken the matter before the Bombay High
Court. Pending disposal of the case amount paid towards Company's share of tax deposited
in Court has not been recognised in profit & loss account and shown as deposit under Long
Term Loans and Advances (Non-Current). (Refer Note 10)

Initial margin placed with the exchanges towards capital in the form of cash Rs.147.59 lakhs
(P.¥. Rs. 147.59 lakhs). (Refer Note 10).

The company during the financial year 2012-13 acquired 12300 fully paid Equity Shares of Rs
10 each in the 1PO of Thejo Engineering Ltd at Rs 402/- per share amounting to Rs 49.44
lakhs in the Market Maker portion where IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd agreed to act as
Market Maker for a period of three years from the date of listing of the shares. Further
bonus shares on above totalling to 12300 were received during 2013-14. Thus 24600 shares
have been treated as non-current investment. As market maker to the issue, Shares
acquired from the market, outstanding as on 31.03.2016 inciuding 86100 Bonus Shares
received on 14.09.2013 Is 177600 equity shares (P.Y 201000 equity shares) amounting to Rs
342.03 lakhs (P.Y 387.11 lakhs) has been treated as Current Investments, The market value
of these shares as on 31.03.2016 amounts to Rs 340.99 lakhs (P.Y Rs. 391.95 lakhs), (Refer
Note 8 & Note 11 of Notes to Accounts and Note 1 (f.1) of Significant Accounting Policies),

The company during the financial year 2013-14 acquired 301000 fully paid Equity Shares of
Rs 10 each in the IPO of Opal Luxury Time Products Ltd at Rs 130/- per share amounting to
Rs 391.30 lakhs in the Market Maker portion where IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd agreed
to act as Market Maker for a period of three years from the date of listing of the shares. This
has been treated as long term investment and accordingly classified under Non-Current
investments. Further, as market maker to the issue, Shares acquired from the market,
outstanding as on 31.03.2016 is 120000 equity shares (PY 65000 equity shares) amounting
to 128.44 lakhs (PY Rs 74.69 lakhs) has been treated as Current Investments. The market
value of these shares as on 31.03.2016 amounts to Rs 115.08 lakhs (P.Y Rs. 74.42 lakhs).
(Refer Note B & Note 11 of Notes to Accounts and Note 1 (f.1) of Significant Accounting
Policies).




26.

al Statutory dues under other Current liabilities include an amount Rs. 3.97 lakhs being service
tax liability on bills raised before July 01, 2011. The amount s outstanding in the books as
the amount is payable only on receipt of payment from the service receiver as per prevailing
point of taxation under service tax rules of that respective year. (Refer Note 5).

b)

Pending receipt order giving effect to Appellate Decisions in favour of the Company far
earlier assessment years, effect of adjustments/reversals if any, in respect of Income Tax
provision of those years has not been reflected during the year. (Refer Note 14]

27. Empioyees Benefit;

Defined Contribution Plans:

Amount recognised and included for Contribution to Provident Fund in Note 18 “Contribution
to Provident and other funds” of Profit and Loss Account is Rs. 42.50 lakhs (Previous year Rs.

50.48 lakhs)

b. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five
years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for

each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 10,00,000,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the
profit and loss account and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet.

Profit and Loss account

Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 013 2012
Rs in lakds Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs
Current sérvice cost 18.28 18.17 21.40 15.98 29.67
| Interest cost on benefit
obligation 7.55 7.65 6.49 4.67 3.95
Expected return on plan
[pesn |6.99) (7.36) (7.12) (5.94) (5.04)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss
recogrised in the year {0.74) (0.42) (12.61) 7.14 (23.77)
Past service cost - - - ’ 2
Net benefit expense 18.10 18.04 8.16 21.85 4.81
Actual return on plan assets 71.24 6.65 6.29 5.12 5.54
Balance sheet
Details of Provision for gratuity
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Rs in baikhs Rsin ks Rsin bidhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Defined benefit nﬂatinn (105.65) (94.58) B2.36 Bl.1E 58.314
Fair value of plan assets 97.13 87.64 B4.61 81.87 69.10
Difference (8.52) (6.94) 2.25 0.69 10.76
Less: Unrecognised past
service cost ) _ )
Plan asset / (liability) (8.52) (6.94) 2.25




Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2018 2014 2013 2012
Rs in lakdvs Rs in lakhs Rs in bikhs Pz in lakhs Rs in kakdhs
Opening defined benefit 94.58 82.36 B1 18 58.34 49.43
obligation
Interest cost 7.55 7.65 6.49 4.67 3.95
Current service cost 18.28 18.17 21.40 15.98 29.67
Benefits paid (14.27) (12.47) (13.27] (4.13) (1.45)
A::tuari.al (gains) / losses on (0.48) (1.13) (13.44) 631 (23.26)
nhhianun
Closing dafined benefit 105,65 94.58 82.36 81.18 58.34
_ abligation
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 015 2014 2013 2012
Rs in lakhs Rs in ks Rsin bkt Rs in lakhs Rs in Lakdhs
Opiing fiir vaive of plan 87.64 84.61 81.87 69.10 63.00
assets
Expected return 5.99 7.36 7.12 5.94 5.04
Contributions by employer 16.52 8.84 9.72 11.78 2.01
Benefits paid (14.27) (12.47) {13.27) (4.13) (1.45)
Actuarial gains / (losses) 0.2% (0.70) {0.83) (0.82) 0.50
Closing fair value of plan
pEaEE, 97.13 87.64 1 84.61 81.87 £69.10

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are

as follows:
' March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
% % % % %
' Investments with insurer 100 100 100 100 100

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices
prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled,

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans

are shown below:
| March 31, 2016 March 31,2015 | March 31,2014 | March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
% % %l ¥ %
Discount rate 7.80 7.98 9.29 8.00 8.00
Expected rate of return on 7.80 7.98 B.70 8.70 8.00
Plan assets
salary Escalation Rate 5.00 5.00 5.00 | 5.00 5.00

In the absence of detailed information regarding Plan Assets which is funded with Life
Insurance Corporation of India, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the
percentage or amount for each category to the total fair value of plan assets has not been

disclosed.

The details of experience adjustments arising on account of plan assets and plan liabilities as
required by paragraph 120(n)(ii) of AS 15 (Revised) on “Employee Benefits” are not readily
available in the valuation statement received from LIC and hence, are not furnished. (Refer

Note 18)




c. The Company has provided shartfall in plan assets in gratuity and leave encashment funds
with projected benefit obligations as per actuarial valuation results as on 31.03.2016 in the
books by debiting the statement of profit and loss amounting to Rs. 1,58 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 6.94
lakhs and Rs. 7.68 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 14.99 lakhs) respectively.

28. Operating Leases
Office premises are taken on operating lease. There are no restrictions imposed by lease
agreements and all lease agreements are cancellable in nature on short term notice.

(Rs. In Lakhs)
! Asat Asat
P !
articulars March 31, 2016 March 31,2015
Lease payments for the year 569.90 564.19
Contingent rent recognized in Profit & Loss Account - -

The above includes payment made to IDBI Bank Ltd (Holding Company) amounting to Rs.
538.81 lacs (P.Y.Rs. 538.81 lacs) towards Rent for Corporate Office ( 3rd floor, Mafatlal Centre)
for which no formal lease agreement is executed. The Company is in the process of finalising
the agreement for operating lease, (Refer Note 20 — Administrative Expenses)

29.  Earnings per Share (EPS) - The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic
Earnings per Share

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 016! March 31, 2015
PrafiviLoss) after tax, and share of profit / (loss) of associates (Rs. 1044 455
In Lakhs) (&)
| Calculation of welghted average number of equity shares {B]
| « No. of shares at the beginning of the period | 12,81,00,000 | 12,81,00,000
| - No. of shares issued during the period : .
- Total No. of shares outstanding at the period 12,81,00,000 | 12,81,00,000
- Nominal value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10 10
- Paid up value of the equity share (Rs.) 10 10
Weighted average no. of shares 12,81,00,000 | 12.81,00,000
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) |A/B) 0.81 | 0.35
Piluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 0.81 0.35
Other Notes

30.  Related Party Transactions:
|Disclosure required under AS 18]
| List of related parties:
A. Related Party where control exists
IDBI Bank Ltd. - Holding Company
IDB! Intech Limited — Fellow Subsidiary
IDBI Asset Management Ltd - Associate
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited - Fellow Subsidiary
B. Other Related Parties
Enterprises under common control of the Holding Company
IDBI Federal Life Insurance Co Ltd
C. Key Management Personnel -
D. C. Jain, Managing Director & CEO till August 31, 2015
Nagaraj Garla, Managing Director & CEO from October 23, 2015
V. Gopinath, Chief Financial Officer
Christina D'souza, Company Secretary




il Transactions with Related Parties carried out in the Ordinary course of business and
balance outstanding at the end:

Rs. In lacs
Name of Nature of Transaction During the year Outstanding as at
Related Party 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
IDBI Bank Ltd Interest received 516.97 525.01 157.16 186.40
Brokerage earned 41.25 120.93 - -
Rent Received 26.40 26.40
Maobilisation fees - - 143.04 143.04
Advisory Fees received 108.50 27.00 139.54 66.05
Rent paid 546.31 546.31 0.32 2.87
Electricity Charges paid 1.07 1.07 - 0.29
Professional Charges paid 22.00 - - -
Brokerage Paid 111.71 118.81 219.11 118.84
Medical Expns Reimb. 1.86 3.49 - -
Sitting Fees 2.55 0.80 - -
Staff on deputation (in ICMS Rolls) 17.48 28.80 - 2.39
Staff on deputation (in IDBI Rolls) 211.08 276.86 BO.0S 80.05
Bank Balances - - | 32783.04 2311.17
Fixed Deposit 4955.00 6380.00
Share Capital held by IDBI Bank - | 12810.00 | 12810.00
IDB! Intech Ltd | Professional Charges 238.60 239.14 - -
Manpower Hire Charges 0.00 0.06 - -
DB} Brokerage earned 10.51 3.13 - -
Trusteeship Brokerage Paid 0.08 142 - -
Services Lid
IDBI Federal Brokerage earned 40.01 4211 -
Lite Insurance
Co. Lid
IDBI Asset Commission earned 1.86 1.48 - .
Management Miscellaneous Income 0.71 - - -
Led Transfer of Fixed Asset - 1.26 1.26
Investment in Equity Share Capital * = 2666.00 65666.00 bE66.00
Managerial Remuneration 10 MDECEQ {includes 25.81 28.38 - -
Remuneration | pay, allowances and reimbursements)
Pension scheme contribution 0.62 0.70 R
Perquisites & benefits 0.00 0.17 - -

* During the year, the company invested nil (P.Y. 2,66,60,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each at par
amounting to Rs.nil (P.Y. Rs. 26.66 crores ) in IDBI Asset Management Ltd a subsidiary of IDBI Bank
Ltd. The total holding of the company as on 31.03.2016 is 33.33 % (P.Y. 33.33 %). (Refer Note 8)




31,  Statement of Net Assets and Profit or Loss attributable to owners

Rs. In Lakhs

Name of the Entity Reporting | As % of Net Assets ie, As % of Share in

Currency | consolidated | Total assets consolidated | profit or

net assets minus total profit or loss | (loss)
liabilities
A Parent
IDBI Capital Market Services Ltd INR 100% 31305 100% 928
B. Associates
IDBI Asset Management Lid INR - 3238 - 116
Consolidated Net Asset / Profit 27877 1044
| after Tax |

32. Contingent Liabilities and commitments ( to the extent not provided for)
i} Other items for which the Company is contingently liable-

1. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt — Rs. 79.04 lakhs (PY Rs.
49.62 lakhs) including interest @ 18% amounting to Rs. 28.12 lakhs (P Y Rs. 21.30
lakhs).

2. A demand notice dated 27.01.2015 was received raising a demand for payment of
income tax of Rs. 611.79 lakhs for the Asst. Year 2012-13. The notice has been
contested by the company before the appropriate autharities. The Company has also
been advised by its legal counsel that the tax demand against the company is
untenable and likelihood of demand being upheld is low. Accordingly no provision in
raspect thereof has been made.

3. A demand notice dated 21.03.2016 was received raising a demand for payment of
income tax of Rs. 20.16 lakhs for the Asst. Year 2013-14. The notice has been
contested by the company before the appropriate authorities. The Company has also
been advised by its legal counsel that the tax demand against the company is
untenable and likelihood of demand being upheld is low, Accordingly no provision in
respect thereof has been made.

4. SEBI vide order dated November 28, 2014 has imposed a penalty of Rs. 100 lakhs
jointly and severally to be paid by all the 6 Merchant Bankers including IDBI Capital
Market Services Ltd who acted as Book Running Lead Managers (BRLMS) in one of
the IPOs which came out in December 2012. All 6 Merchant Bankers have jointly
appealed before Securities and Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the above order.
Pending disposal of the appeal, amount of Rs 16.67 lakhs (the proportionate
amount) has not been recognized.

5. A show cause notice has been issued by the Service Tax Dept on 07.05.2015 citing
non compliance of provisions of Rule 6(3) and Rule 6{38) of Cenvat Credit Rules 2004
and asked the company to remit Rs. 159.56 lakhs along with interest though IDBI
Capital do not fall within the meaning of a banking company and financial institution
including a non-banking company as mentioned in Rule 6(38) of Cenvat Credit Rules
2004, The matter is pending before Principal Commissioner of Service Tax. The
Company has also been advised by its counsel that the service tax demand ggaigst




the company is untenable and likelihood of demand being upheld is low.
Accordingly no provision in respect thereof has been made.

i) Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for: Rs. Nil lakhs (PY Rs 55.33 lakhs lakhs).

iii) An amount of Rs.17.10 lakhs has not been recognized in respect of a project committed
under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activity by the company during the financial
year 2015-16 as the execution of the project will be completed only during the financial
year 2016-17,

33.  Earnings in Foreign Currency on account of Advisory services Rs 4.31 lakhs (P.Y. - Rs. 3.73
lakhs) and Expenditure in Foreign currency on account of Travelling Rs. 3.85 lakhs (P.Y. - Rs,
5.12 lakhs).

34, Dividend income includes dividend on non-current investment amounting to Rs 18.64 lakhs
(PY Rs. 11.71 lakhs) and current investments Rs 6.44 lakhs (PY Rs 7.10 lakhs). Interest income
includes interest on non-current investments amounting to Rs. 36.05 lakhs (PY Rs. 76.30
lakhs).

35. Segment Reporting (Disclosure required under AS 17)

Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenditure have been allocated to the respective segments to
the extent practicable for the purpose of segment reporting.
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36. The additional Information pursuant to Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 are either

Nil or Not Applicable.

37. Previous year figures have been grouped, regrouped, arranged and rearranged wherever

necessary and possible,

Signatures to Notes 1 to 37
As per our attached report of even date
For A Sachdev & Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001307C

Manish Agarwal | £
Partner '
M. No. 078628

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

ishnl"ﬁ;;;

Nagaraj Garla
Chairman Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 07266945 DIN: 06983880
"\,,.._ “'-\, Lm_}-_ﬁ-__r'-__
Christina T souza - Gopinath

Company/Secretary Chief Financial Officer



Form AOC-|
[Pursyant to first proviso to sub-section [3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries
(informaticn in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in €]

1 [ CiN

2 Hame of the subsidiary

3 | Weporiing peripd for the subsidiary concerned, if different fram the holding company’s
reporting pericd

i Heporting curmency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year
in the case of foreign subiidiaries.

Share capital

Total assety MNOT APPLICABLE

5
& Reservied & surphus
7
|

Tatal Labilities

g, irveLtrnents

10. | Turnower

11 | Proft before taxation

12 | Prowigon for taxation

13 | Profit atter taxation

14, | Proposed Dividend

15. | % of shareholding

Mote:
1 Names ol subndianes which are yet to commence operations WA,
1 Namei of subsidiaries which have been liguidated ar wold duting tha year. MLA.

Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3} of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Vientures

Name of AssociatesfJoint Ventures IDBI ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
|ASSOCIATE COMPANY)
1. | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31, 2016
Z. | Shares of Associate held by the company on the year
end
Number of Equity Shares 66660000
Amount of Investment in Associates (T in lacs) 6666
Extend of Holding % 33.33%
3. | Description of how there is significant influence The company has significant Influence through

holding more than 20% of the Equity Shares in
the investee company in terms of Accounting
standards 23 issued by ICAl

4. | Reason why the associate is not Consolidated N.A,

5. | Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest 5717
audited Balance Sheet (¥ in lacs)

6. | Profit / Loss for the year [Tin lacs)

i. Considered in Consolidation 116

i. Not Considered in Consolidation 232

Note:

1. Mames of associates which are yet 10 commence operations. M.

1. Kamex of aisociates which have been liquidated or sold during NA
the year.

or and on behgif of the Board W

ish-anh?I:.a-t_—-

Nagaraj Garla
Chairman Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07266945 : 06983880
~ A~

Christina D'souza “Gopinath

|
'
Company Secretary @-’M‘ﬁ‘ Chief Financial Officer




